
AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

City Council of the Town of Colma 
Colma Community Center 
1520 Hillside Boulevard 

Colma, CA 94014 

Wednesday, February 10, 2016 
CLOSED SESSION – 6:00 PM 

REGULAR SESSION – 7:00 PM 

CLOSED SESSION – 6:00 PM 

1. In Closed Session Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 – Conference with Labor
Negotiators

Agency Negotiators: Sean Rabé, City Manager 
Austris Rungis, IEDA 

Employee Organizations: Colma Peace Officers Association and Colma 
Communications/Records Association 

Unrepresented Employees: All 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND ROLL CALL 

REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

PRESENTATION 

 Introduction and Swearing In of New Police Officer Anthony Berkovatz

 Police Department Year-in-Review Presentation

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Comments on the Consent Calendar and Non-Agenda Items will be heard at this time. 
Comments on Agenda Items will be heard when the item is called. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

2. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the January 13, 2016 Regular Meeting.

3. Motion to Approve Report of Checks Paid for January 2016.

Page 1 of 2 



4. Motion to Adopt an Ordinance Amending Section 5.04.220 of the Colma Municipal Code Relating
to Standard Hours of Construction, Pursuant to CEQA Guideline 15061(b)(3), (second reading).

5. Motion Accepting the 2015 Annual Report on the Implementation of the General Plan, Including
the Housing Element.

6. Motion to Accept a Resolution Approving First Amendment to Employment Contract with Kirk
Stratton.

PUBLIC HEARING 

7. BINGO ORDINANCE

Consider: Motion to Introduce an Ordinance Adding a New Subchapter 4.14 of the Colma
Municipal Code, Relating to Bingo Games, and to Waive a Further Reading of the Ordinance.

8. PENINSULA CLEAN ENERGY

a. Consider: Motion to Introduce an Ordinance Authorizing the Implementation of a
Community Choice Aggregation Program Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines 15061(b)(3),15308, 
and 15378, and to Waive a Further Reading of the Ordinance. 

b. Consider: Motion to Adopt a Resolution Authorizing and Directing the Mayor to Execute the 
Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement, Which Will Establish the Peninsula Clean Energy 
Authority with the City as a Charter Member, and Appointing a Director and Alternate 
Director. 

9. COMMERCIAL CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT REQUIREMENTS

Consider: Motion to Introduce an Ordinance Amending Section 5.03.090 of the Colma Municipal
Code Relating to Commercial Administrative Use Permits Pursuant to CEQA Guideline
15061(B)(3), and to Waive a Further Reading of the Ordinance.

COUNCIL CALENDARING 

REPORTS 

Mayor/City Council 

City Manager 

ADJOURNMENT 
The City Council Meeting Agenda Packet and supporting documents are available for review at the Colma Town Hall, 1188 El 
Camino Real, Colma, CA during normal business hours (Mon – Fri 8am-5pm). Persons interested in obtaining an agenda via e-
mail should call Caitlin Corley at 650-997-8300 or email a request to ccorley@colma.ca.gov.  

Reasonable Accommodation 
Upon request, this publication will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required 
by the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Any person with a disability, who requires a modification or accommodation to 
view the agenda, should direct such a request to Brian Dossey, ADA Coordinator, at 650-997-8300 or 
brian.dossey@colma.ca.gov. Please allow two business days for your request to be processed. 

Page 2 of 2 

mailto:ccorley@colma.ca.gov
mailto:brian.dossey@colma.ca.gov


CLOSED SESSION 

1. In Closed Session Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 – Conference with
Labor Negotiators

Agency Negotiator: Sean Rabé, City Manager 
Employee Organizations: Colma Peace Officers Association and Colma 

Communications/Records Association 

There is no staff report for this item. 

Item #1



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING 

City Council of the Town of Colma 
Colma Community Center, 1520 Hillside Boulevard 

Colma, CA 94014 
Wednesday, January 13, 2016 

Closed Session – 6:00 p.m. 
Regular Session – 7:00 p.m. 

CLOSED SESSION – 6:00 p.m. 

1. In Closed Session Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 – Conference with Labor
Negotiators

Agency Negotiators: Sean Rabé, City Manager  
Austris Rungis, IEDA  

Employee Organizations: Colma Peace Officers Association  
Colma Communications/Records Association 

Unrepresented Employees:  All 

CALL TO ORDER – 7:00 p.m. 

Mayor Diana Colvin called the Regular Meeting of the City Council to order at 7:03 p.m. 

Council Present – Mayor Diana Colvin, Vice Mayor Helen Fisicaro, Council Members Raquel 
“Rae” Gonzalez, Joseph Silva and Joanne F. del Rosario were all present. 

Staff Present – City Manager Sean Rabé, City Attorney Christopher Diaz, Chief of Police Kirk 
Stratton, Recreation Services Director Brian Dossey, Director of Public Works Brad Donohue, 
City Planner Michael Laughlin, Associate Planner Turhan Sonmez and City Clerk Caitlin 
Corley were in attendance.  

REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 

Mayor Colvin reported that during Close Session, Council gave direction to staff regarding 
labor negotiations.  

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

Mayor Colvin asked if there were any changes to the agenda. None were request.  The 
Mayor asked for a motion to adopt the agenda. 

Action:  Council Member del Rosario moved to adopt the agenda; the motion was seconded 
by Council Member Silva and carried by the following vote: 

Page 1 of 6 

Item #2



 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Diana Colvin, Mayor      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez      
Joseph Silva       
Joanne F. del Rosario      
 5 0    

PRESENTATION  

 Director of Recreation Brian Dossey presented the winners of the Town’s Holiday House 
Decorating Contest. 

 Police Chief Kirk Stratton introduced and swore in the new Police Officer Jorge Alvarado.  

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Mayor Colvin opened the public comment period at 7:24 p.m. Alie Sobczak of HIP Housing 
thanked the Council for their support. Bob Gordon of San Mateo County Tobacco Education 
Coalition spoke briefly about his organization. The Mayor closed the public comment period 
at 7:32 p.m. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

2. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the December 9, 2015 Regular Meeting.  

3. Motion to Approve Report of Checks Paid for December 2015.  
4. Motion to Adopt an Ordinance Amending Sections 5.01.080 and 5.03.350 of the Colma 

Municipal Code, to Prohibit Marijuana Cultivation Pursuant to CEQA Guideline 15061(b)(3) 
(Second Reading).  

5. Motion to Accept Informational Report on Recreation Department Programs, Activities, 
Events, and Trips for the Fourth Quarter of 2015.  

6. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Amending Subchapter 3.04 and 3.05 of the Colma 
Administrative Code, Relating to Personnel Policies.  

Action: Council Member Silva moved to approve the Consent Calendar items #2-6; the 
motion was seconded by Vice Mayor Fisicaro and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Diana Colvin, Mayor      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez      
Joseph Silva       
Joanne F. del Rosario      
 5 0    

 

  

Page 2 of 6 
 



 

NEW BUSINESS 

7. MOSQUITO ABATEMENT DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEE APPOINTMENT 

Director of Recreation Services Brian Dossey presented the staff report.  Mayor Colvin 
opened the public comment period at 7:37 p.m. and seeing no one come forward to speak, 
she closed the public comment period. Council discussion followed. 

Action: Vice Mayor Fisicaro moved to Adopt a Resolution Appointing Carrie Slaughter to the 
San Mateo County Mosquito and Vector Control District; the motion was seconded by 
Council Member Gonzalez and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Diana Colvin, Mayor      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez      
Joseph Silva       
Joanne F. del Rosario      
 5 0    

8. TOWN HALL RENOVATION PROJECT – SECOND REVIEW OF INTERIOR FINISHES 

City Manager Sean Rabé introduced Bill Blessing and Andrea Wooding of Ratcliff to make a 
presentation. Mayor Colvin opened the public comment period at 8:04 p.m. Resident 
Maureen O’Connor made a comment. The Mayor closed the public comment period at 8:10 
p.m. Council discussion followed. 

Action: Vice Mayor Fisicaro moved to Confirm Option 2 as Modified During the Council 
Meeting, for the Lighting System for the New Town Hall City Council Chamber’s Existing 
Aesthetic; the motion was seconded by Council Member del Rosario and carried by the 
following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Diana Colvin, Mayor      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez      
Joseph Silva       
Joanne F. del Rosario      
 5 0    

PUBLIC HEARING 

9. CONSTRUCTION NOISE ORDINANCE 

City Planner Michael Laughlin presented the staff report.  Mayor Colvin opened the public 
comment hearing at 8:36 p.m. Residents Mary Brodzin and Pat Hatfield made comments. 
The Mayor closed the public hearing at 8:38 p.m. Council discussion followed. 

Page 3 of 6 
 



 

Action: Council Member del Rosario moved to Introduce an Ordinance Amending Section 
5.04.220 of the Colma Municipal Code Relating to Standard Hours of Construction, Pursuant 
to CEQA Guideline 15061(b)(3), and to Waive a Further Reading of the Ordinance; the 
motion was seconded by Vice Mayor Fisicaro and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Diana Colvin, Mayor      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez      
Joseph Silva       
Joanne F. del Rosario      
 5 0    

10. PROPERTY ASSESSED CLEAN ENERGY (PACE) 

Associate Planner Turhan Sonmez presented the staff report.  Mayor Colvin opened the 
public hearing at 7:37 p.m. and seeing no one come forward to speak, she closed the public 
hearing. Council discussion followed. Leah Rowell of the California Hero Program answered 
Council questions. 

Action: Mayor Colvin moved to Adopt a Resolution Approving Associate Membership by the 
Town in the California Enterprise Development Authority; Authorizing and Directing the 
Execution of an Associate Membership Agreement Relating to Associate Membership of the 
Town in the Authority; Authorizing the Town to Join the Figtree Pace Program; Authorizing 
the California Enterprise Development Authority to Conduct Contractual Assessment 
Proceedings and Levy Contractual Assessments Within the Territory of the Town of Colma; 
and Authorizing Related Actions; the motion was seconded by Council Member del Rosario 
and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Diana Colvin, Mayor      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez      
Joseph Silva       
Joanne F. del Rosario      
 5 0    

Action: Vice Mayor Fisicaro moved to Adopt a Resolution Approving Consent to Inclusion of 
Properties Within the Incorporated Area of the Town in the San Mateo County Property 
Assessed Clean Energy Program to Finance Distributed Generation Renewable Energy 
Sources and Energy and Water Efficiency Improvements, Approving the Report Setting Forth 
the Parameters of the Referenced Program and Certain Matters in Connection Therewith; 
the motion was seconded by Council Member del Rosario and carried by the following vote: 

  

Page 4 of 6 
 



 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Diana Colvin, Mayor      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez      
Joseph Silva       
Joanne F. del Rosario      
 5 0    

Action: Mayor Colvin moved to Adopt a Resolution of the City Council of the Town of 
Colma, California, Consenting to the Inclusion of Properties Within the Town’s Jurisdiction in 
the California Hero Program to Finance Distributed Generation Renewable Energy Sources, 
Energy and Water Efficiency Improvements and Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure and 
Approving the Amendment to a Certain Joint Powers Agreement Related Thereto; the 
motion was seconded by Council Member Gonzalez and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Diana Colvin, Mayor      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez      
Joseph Silva       
Joanne F. del Rosario      
 5 0    

STUDY SESSION 

11. WASTE HAULERS FRANCHISE RATE DISCUSSION 

Council Member Helen Fisicaro announced that due to an ongoing legal issue between her 
husband’s company and a subcontractor for South San Francisco Scavenger Company, she 
has decided to recuse herself. She stepped down from the dais and did not participate in 
the discussion.  
 
Special Projects Manager Roger Peters presented the staff report. Mayor Colvin opened the 
public comment period at 9:22 p.m. Carl Mennie, General Manager of Republic Services 
made a comment. The Mayor closed the public comment period at 9:24 p.m. Council 
discussion followed. This item was for discussion only; no action was taken at this meeting.  
 
Council Member Fisicaro returned to the dais.  

12. PLAN BAY AREA 2040 

City Planner Michael Laughlin presented the staff report. Mayor Colvin opened the public 
comment period at 9:41 p.m. Resident Tom Taylor made a comment. The Mayor closed the 
public comment period at 9:44 p.m. Council discussion followed. This item was for 
discussion only; no action was taken at this meeting.  

 

Page 5 of 6 
 



COUNCIL CALENDARING 

The next Regular City Council Meetings will be Wednesday, January 27, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. 
and Wednesday, February 10, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. 

REPORTS 

Diana Colvin 
Council of Cities Dinner, hosted by Colma, 12/18 

Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez 
Council of Cities Dinner, hosted by Colma, 12/18 

Joseph Silva 
Council of Cities Dinner, hosted by Colma, 12/18 

City Manager Sean Rabé reported on the following topics: 

 Town Offices will be closed on Monday, January 18, 2016 for the Martin Luther King
Day Holiday.

 The Demolition of the 1986 Expansion of Town Hall has been completed.

ADJOURNMENT AND CLOSE IN MEMORY 

The meeting was adjourned by Mayor Colvin p.m. in memory of Elvira Schrembi, former 
resident of Creekside Villas; Charles Derwin, son of Portola Valley Mayor Mary Ann Derwin; 
Ave Lovi, mother in law of Doug Button of SSF Scavengers. 

Respectfully submitted,

Caitlin Corley 
City Clerk 

Page 6 of 6 



Item #3



































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



ORDINANCE NO. ___ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 5.04.220 OF THE COLMA MUNICIPAL 
CODE RELATING TO STANDARD HOURS OF CONSTRUCTION PURSUANT TO 

CEQA GUIDELINE 15061(b)(3) 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does ordain as follows: 

ARTICLE 1. CMC SECTION 5.04.220 AMENDED. 

Section 5.04.220 shall be and hereby is amended as follows: 

(a) The City Council finds that regulation of construction noise is necessary to protect the 
public health and safety, and that construction noise at early or late times of the day is a 
nuisance to neighboring properties. 

(b) As used in this subchapter, “noise generating construction activity” means the use of 
any noise generating equipment or tool, including but not limited to: excavators, backhoes, post 
diggers, pile drivers, saws, electric screw drivers, grinders, nail guns, compressors, generators, 
hammers, jack hammers, power washers, paint guns, scaffolding erection, or similar noise 
generating equipment. ”Noise generating construction activity” also includes construction 
material delivery, demolition activities and the servicing of any tool or equipment.  “Noise 
generating construction activity” does not include activities such as drywall finishing, painting, 
tile laying, carpet installation or the use of small hand tools in a fully enclosed structure with 
windows and doors closed.  

(c) Within a radius of 500 feet from any residential unit within Town boundaries, noise 
generating construction activity shall only be permitted between the following hours/days: 

Monday Through Friday 8:00 AM through 7:00 PM; Saturday 9:00 AM through 5:00 PM; 
Sundays 12:00 PM to 5:00 PM. Noise generating construction activity is prohibited on all of the 
following Federal Holidays: New Year’s Day, Martin Luther King Jr. Day, Presidents Day, 
Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Columbus Day, Veteran’s Day, Thanksgiving Day 
and Christmas Day. 

The Building Official, or his or her designee, may grant an exception for special conditions when 
requested in writing and approved by the Building Official, or his or her designee, prior to the 
start of the noise generating noise activity. The above requirements do not apply to emergency 
repair work, work for public utility and street repair, street sweeping, garbage collection and 
emergency response warning systems. 

(d) For projects more than 500 feet from a residential unit in the Town of Colma, 
construction hours shall be assigned on a project-by-project basis by the Building Official, or his 
or her designee, or as established within a project’s Conditions of Approval, based on evaluation 
of potential noise-related impacts on surrounding uses. 

[History: Formerly § 5.04.110; Ord 661, 9/12/07; Ord 738, 1/14/15; Ord____] 

Ord. No. ___ Construction Noise (Introduced 1/13/16) Page 1 of 3 
25977.00100\23233158.2  

Item #4



 
ARTICLE 2. SEVERABILITY.  

Each of the provisions of this Ordinance is severable from all other provisions. If any article, 
section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is for any reason 
held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity 
of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 

 
ARTICLE 3. NOT A CEQA PROJECT. 

The City Council finds that adoption of this Ordinance is not a "project," as defined in the 
California Environmental Quality Act because it does not have a potential for resulting in either 
a direct physical change in the environment or a reasonably foreseeable indirect physical 
change in the environment and concerns general policy and procedure making. Further, the 
proposed ordinance further restricts construction noise generating hours over existing 
regulations, and all projects involving discretionary review by the Town will undergo 
independent California Environmental Quality Act review. 

 
ARTICLE 4. EFFECTIVE DATE.  

This ordinance, or a summary thereof prepared by the City Attorney, shall be posted on the 
three (3) official bulletin boards of the Town of Colma within 15 days of its passage and is to 
take force and effect thirty (30) days after its passage. 

/// 

/// 

/// 

/// 

/// 

/// 

/// 

/// 

/// 

/// 

/// 

 

Ord. No. ___ Construction Noise (Introduced 1/13/16) Page 2 of 3 
25977.00100\23233158.2  



Certificate of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Ordinance No. ___ was duly introduced at a regular meeting of the 
City Council of the Town of Colma held on January 13, 2016 and duly adopted at a regular 
meeting of said City Council held on January ___, 2016 by the following vote: 
 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 

  Aye No Abstain Not Participating   

Diana Colvin, Mayor      

Helen Fisicaro       

Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez       

Joseph Silva      

Joanne F. del Rosario      

Voting Tally      

 
Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Diana Colvin, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 
 
 

Ord. No. ___ Construction Noise (Introduced 1/13/16) Page 3 of 3 
25977.00100\23233158.2  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



STAFF REPORT 

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Michael P. Laughlin, AICP, City Planner 

VIA:  Sean Rabé, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: February 10, 2016 

SUBJECT: 2015 General Plan and Housing Element Annual Report 

RECOMMENDATION 

MOTION ACCEPTING THE 2015 ANNUAL REPORT ON THE IMPLEMENTATION OF 
THE GENERAL PLAN, INCLUDING THE HOUSING ELEMENT  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Each year, the town is required to submit annual reports on the implementation of the 
General Plan and Housing Element to the state. Prior to staff sending the report to the 
state, the City Council must accept the report. As shown in the attached General Plan 
Implementation Status Sheets, there were minimal developments in the 2015 calendar 
year regarding implementation of the current General Plan.  The most significant actions 
taken in 2015 were the adoption of the new Housing Element and a study session on 
the revised Historical Resources Element. In addition, the City Council approved two 
amendments to the Land Use Element to include the removal of the annual housing 
development limit of 50 units and to allow differing architectural styles in portions of the 
Town.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

The preparation of the 2015 Annual Report on the status of implementation of the 
General Plan does not have an impact on the Town’s adopted budget. 

BACKGROUND 

California Government Code Section 65400 requires that an Annual Report be prepared 
that details the status of implementation of the General Plan. A separate report is 
required for the status of the Housing Element. This report is to be submitted to the City 
Council, the Governor’s Office of Planning and Research, and the California Department 
of Housing and Community Development. This report is required to include details of the 
progress toward implementation of each of the elements within the General Plan.  

A city’s General Plan serves as the overall guide and vision for all of the community’s 
land use and development activities. Due to the fact that a General Plan requires 

Staff Report – 2015 General Plan Annual Report Page 1 of 4 
January 14, 2016 

Item #5



periodic updates to accurately reflect changes in values and priorities of a community, it 
is important that local jurisdictions review their General Plans and the status of 
implementation of the measures included in each element of the Plan. It is the goal of 
this Annual Report to provide a tool for this review. 

The General Plan contains the seven State required elements: Land Use, Circulation, 
Housing, Open Space/Conservation, Noise and Safety. The law does not require specific 
time limits on updates to the General Plan, with the exception of the Housing Element. 
However, it is essential that a community’s General Plan is current and consistent with 
zoning regulations and changes within the community. As the City Council is aware, 
most of Colma’s General Plan dates back to 1999 and is in need of updating. Over the 
past calendar year, Staff has also made progress on the 2035 General Plan update.  

ANALYSIS 

Attached is a table that details each of the policies set forth in elements of the General 
Plan. The tables contain the implementation measure for each policy along with a status 
update for each policy. Many of the polices are implemented on a case by case basis, 
and require ongoing implementation as projects are submitted to staff for review. 
However, some policies are quite outdated and show the age of our General Plan and 
are evidence of our need for a General Plan update. The discussion below highlights 
actions by element (only elements where a significant action occurred are listed): 

Housing Element 

Since the focus this year was adopting a new Housing Element, no implementation 
occurred.  Due to the economy, no applications for housing development have been 
received by the Town, but more inquiries are being made as the economy improves.  
The following list summarizes the highlights of the Housing Element: 

• The units that were identified in the recently adopted Housing Element have not 
been built. An application was submitted for the former sandblaster site located on 
El Camino Real but is on hold.  Mercy Housing is pursuing development of the Holy 
Cross property on Mission Road, and submitted an application in early 2016 for a 66 
unit veteran’s project. If this project is approved and built, it will satisfy not only the 
Town’s entire regional housing number (59) for this housing cycle, but will also 
satisfy the entire affordable housing production goal for the 8-year housing cycle. 

• Colma continues to provide funding to programs such as the Human Investment 
Project, the North Peninsula Food Pantry and Dining Center, and Second Harvest 
Food Bank to provide assistance to the homeless and to help people find housing.  

• The number of section 8 units in the Town remained at 12 between 2014 and 2015. 
 

Additional information about Housing Element compliance can be found in Tables A-C, 
attached. Since this is a table generated through the state HCD website, there are 
typing errors generated by their system that cannot be corrected.  

 

Staff Report – 2015 General Plan Annual Report  Page 2 of 4 
January 14, 2016 



Circulation Element  

The City Council adopted Complete Street revisions to the 1999 Circulation Element and 
updated text in 2014. Hillside Boulevard was improved between Hoffman and 
Serramonte.  New ADA improvements, bike lanes, street parking, a sidewalk on the east 
side (there is already exists a sidewalk on the west side), light fixtures, and landscaping 
were installed. Improvements will extend between Serramonte and Lawndale for Phase 
II at a future time. 

Land Use Element 

Related to the General Plan Land Use Element, the City Council amended the text of the 
Land Use Element to remove the 50 unit limit on new residential projects.  This was 
done in anticipation of the proposed 66 unit affordable housing project on Mission Road. 
In addition, the City Council amended the language which would permit other types of 
architectural styles in portions of the town (in addition to Spanish Mediterranean).  No 
other actions were taken related to the Land Use Element.  

Noise Element 

No policy implementation occurred this year on the General Plan Noise Element. 
Planning Staff presented new existing conditions information at a study session in 2014. 
This information will be used in the General Plan update.  

Safety Element 

The SFPUC furthered the policy encouraging upgrading of pipelines to handle seismic 
stress (policy 5.07.416) by replacing a main water distribution line south of Serramonte 
Boulevard.  

Historical Resources Element 

With the assistance of a planning consultant, staff prepared a new draft of the Historical 
Resources Element.  This draft was reviewed at a study session by the City Council in 
December of 2015.  This document will be folded into the amended General Plan prior to 
its review and adoption. 

Council Adopted Values 

The Annual Report on the General Plan complies with the Council’s commitment to 
Responsibility  through the periodic review of the implementation of adopted policies 
and programs. 

Sustainability Impact 

None 
 

 

Staff Report – 2015 General Plan Annual Report  Page 3 of 4 
January 14, 2016 



Alternatives  

1. Take no action. The Town would not be in compliance with the requirements of 
Government Code Section 65400. 
 

2. Provide direction to staff to make changes in the General Plan Annual Report and 
forward the report to the state. 

 

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends that the City Council, by motion, accept the 2015 Annual Report on 
the status of Implementation of the General Plan and Housing Element. 

ATTACHMENTS 

A. 2015 Annual Report on the Implementation of the Housing Element, including Tables 
A-C 

B. 2015 Annual Report on the Implementation of the General Plan, Remaining Elements 

Staff Report – 2015 General Plan Annual Report  Page 4 of 4 
January 14, 2016 



Attachment A























 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Attachment B





























































STAFF REPORT

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Sean Rabé, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: February 10, 2016 

SUBJECT: First Amendment to Employment Contract for Chief of Police 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the following resolution: 

RESOLUTION APPROVING FIRST AMENDMENT TO EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT WITH 
KIRK STRATTON 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The attached First Amendment will increase the Chief of Police’s base salary, retroactively to 
November 12, 2015, consistent with the time salary negotiations began occurring. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The Chief of Police’s salary under the terms of the First Amendment will increase from $170,000 
to $178,500. While this increase was not reflected in the adopted 2015-16 Budget, there are 
ample savings in the Police Department Administration Budget to cover the increase. 

BACKGROUND 

On October 8, 2014, the Town of Colma entered into an employment contract with Kirk Stratton 
to serve as the Town’s Chief of Police. Upon his successful first year as the Chief of Police, staff 
began the process of negotiating his salary and evaluating his annual performance. Staff is now 
seeking to amend the Chief’s contract to increase his base salary by five percent retroactive to 
the time salary negotiations began occurring.  

ANALYSIS 

Base Salary 
Under the terms of the First Amendment, the Chief of Police’s base salary will increase from the 
current $170,000 per year to $178,500 per year, a total increase of $8,500. This increase will 
be retroactively effective November 12, 2015. All other terms and conditions of Mr. Stratton’s 
employment agreement with the Town will remain unchanged. 

Staff Report re: First Amendment to Contract with Kirk Stratton  Page 1 of 2 

25977.00100\24442611.1
2/3/16  

Item #6



CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a Resolution approving the First Amendment to 
the employment contract with Kirk Stratton. 

ATTACHMENTS 

A. Resolution 
B. First Amendment 
C. Employment Contract 

Staff Report re: First Amendment to Contract with Kirk Stratton  Page 2 of 2 
 
25977.00100\24442611.1  
2/3/16  



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-## 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION APPROVING FIRST AMENDMENT TO 
EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT WITH KIRK STRATTON 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve as follows: 

1. Background

(a) On October 8, 2014, the City Council entered into an employment contract with Kirk
Stratton to serve as the Town’s Chief of Police. 

(b) The City Council now seeks to amend the Chief of Police’s contract to increase his base 
salary, subject to approval of an amendment to the employment contract. 

2. Order

(a) The First Amendment to the employment contract between the Town of Colma and Kirk
Stratton, a copy of which is on file with the City Clerk, shall be and hereby is approved by the 
City Council of the Town of Colma. 

(b) The Mayor shall be, and hereby is, authorized to execute this First Amendment on 
behalf of the Town of Colma, with such technical amendments as may be deemed appropriate 
by the Mayor and the City Attorney. 

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2016-## was duly adopted at a regular meeting of 
said City Council held on February 10, 2016 by the following vote: 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 

Aye No Abstain Present, Recused  Absent 

Diana Colvin, Mayor 

Helen Fisicaro 

Raquel Gonzalez 

Joseph Silva 

Joanne del Rosario 

Voting Tally 

Dated ______________________ ___________________________________ 
Diana Colvin, Mayor 

Attest:   ____________________________ 
 Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 

Res. 2016-__, Approving First Amendment to Employment Contract with Kirk Stratton Page 1 of 1 

Attachment A



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



FIRST AMENDMENT TO  
EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT WITH KIRK STRATTON 

This First Amendment is made and entered into by and between the Town of Colma, a 
municipal corporation and general law city (“Employer”), and Kirk Stratton (“Employee”), who 
are sometimes individually referred to as a "Party" and collectively as "Parties" in this First 
Amendment. For reference purposes, this First Amendment is dated November 12, 2015. 

1. Recitals. This First Amendment is made with reference to the following facts:

(a) On October 8, 2014, Employer and Employee entered into an Employment 
Contract (“Contract”) for Employee to serve as Chief of Police.

(b) The Employer and Employee now seek to amend the Contract to increase the 
Employee’s base salary, retroactive to November 12, 2015.

(c) Employer and Employee now desire to enter into this First Amendment to 
increase Employee’s base salary.

NOW, THEREFORE, BASED ON THE MUTUAL PROMISES AND CONSIDERATION
CONTAINED IN THIS FIRST AMENDMENT AND THE CONTRACT, THE PARTIES HEREBY AGREE 
AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Subsection (a) of Section 3, “Salary” of the Contract is hereby modified as
follows:

(a) Salary. Employer shall pay Employee a salary of $178,500.00 per year, or such
greater amount as may hereafter be approved by the City Council, which shall be paid at
the same time and in the same manner as salaries are usually paid to Miscellaneous
Employees of the Town.

Execution. In Witness thereof, the parties hereto have signed this First Amendment on the 
respective dates shown below and this First Amendment and the Contract constitutes the entire 
Agreement between the Parties. 

Dated ___________________ _________________________________ 
 Kirk Stratton, Employee 

Dated: __________________ TOWN OF COLMA (Employer) 

By _______________________________ 
 Diana Colvin, Mayor 

First Amendment to Employment Contract with Kirk Stratton Page 1 of 1 

Attachment B



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Attachment C













STAFF REPORT

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Christopher J. Diaz, City Attorney 

VIA:  Sean Rabé, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: February 10, 2016 

SUBJECT: Bingo Ordinance 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council: 

INTRODUCE AN ORDINANCE ADDING A NEW SUBCHAPTER 4.14 OF THE COLMA 
MUNICIPAL CODE, RELATING TO BINGO GAMES, AND WAIVE A FURTHER READING. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The proposed ordinance would add a new subchapter 4.14 to the Colma Municipal Code to 
allow nonprofits, and other specified entities, to host bingo in the Town. Under state law, a 
non-profit, or other specified entity, cannot host bingo in the Town until the City Council adopts 
an enabling ordinance to allow bingo to be conducted within the Town limits. The proposed 
ordinance meets all the requirements of state law and includes additional provisions in an effort 
to protect the public health, safety and general welfare. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The proposed ordinance is not anticipated to cause a positive or negative financial impact on 
the Town. Pursuant to state law, the Town cannot require a non-profit or other specified entity, 
to share its profits with the Town as a condition to hosting bingo in the Town. 

The proposed ordinance also imposes the Town’s existing background check fee and a $50 fee 
allowed pursuant to state law to recover the Town’s costs, in the form of staff time, in 
processing an application. The Town will closely monitor the staff time involved in processing an 
application. If it is found that the Town’s cost exceeds the fee amounts, additional fee 
adjustments will be brought forth to the City Council at that time. 

BACKGROUND 

The Town has been approached by various non-profit entities seeking to conduct bingo in the 
Town. Under state law, the Town must enact an ordinance in order to allow non-profit entities 
to conduct bingo in the Town. 

Staff Report Bingo Ordinance  Page 1 of 3 
25977.00100\24432290.1

Item #7



ANALYSIS 

California Penal Code Section 326.5 specifies that prior to a bingo game being conducted within 
a city or county, the city or county shall first pass an enabling ordinance allowing such games. 
Any ordinance adopted must meet the specific criteria in Penal Code Section 326.5. More 
specifically, the ordinance must specify that: 

• Bingo shall only be conducted by organizations exempted from the payment of the 
bank and corporation tax by Sections 23701a, 23701b, 23701d, 23701e, 23701f, 
23701g, 23701k, 23701w, and 23701l of the Revenue and Taxation Code and by mobile 
home park associations, senior citizens organizations, and charitable organizations 
affiliated with a school district;  

• Receipts from any bingo games shall be used only for charitable purposes; 

• It is a misdemeanor for any person to receive or pay a profit, wage, or salary from any 
bingo game, with violation punishable by a fine not to exceed ten thousand dollars 
($10,000);  

• Minors shall not be allowed to participate in any bingo game;  

• An organization authorized to conduct bingo games shall do so only on property owned 
or leased by it, or property whose use is donated to the organization and which 
property is used by that organization for an office or for performance of the purposes 
for which the organization is organized; 

• Bingo games shall be open to the public, not just to the members of the authorized 
organization; 

• Bingo games shall be operated and staffed only by members of the authorized 
organization that organized it. Those members shall not receive a profit, wage, or 
salary from any bingo game; 

• Any individual, corporation, partnership, or other legal entity, except the organization 
authorized to conduct a bingo game, shall not hold a financial interest in the conduct of 
a bingo game; 

• All profits derived from a bingo game shall be kept in a special fund or account and 
shall not be commingled with any other fund or account; 

• A person shall not be allowed to participate in a bingo game, unless the person is 
physically present at the time and place where the bingo game is being conducted; 

• The total value of prizes available to be awarded during the conduct of any bingo 
games shall not exceed five hundred dollars ($500). 

In addition to the legally required provisions articulated above, the City Attorney’s office, in 
consultation with the City Manager, Chief of Police, and City Planner, have included additional 
provisions in the proposed bingo ordinance to address the public health, safety and welfare.  

Staff Report Bingo Ordinance   Page 2 of 3 
25977.00100\24432290.1  
 



These provisions include: 

• Limiting the organizations that can conduct bingo in the Town to those that have some 
connection to the Town, similar to the requirement contained in the Town’s existing 
non-profit donation policy. This will ensure that only those organizations that provide an 
identifiable benefit to the Town or the community at large, provide a service that 
complements or enhances a service that the Town of Colma also provides to its 
residents or businesses; or provides a service that the Town could provide to its 
residents or businesses but chooses not to, can host bingo in the Town. 

• Requiring any organization seeking to conduct bingo to apply for a permit that is good 
for a one-year period. As part of this permit process, the Chief of Police will have 
authority to conduct a background check and potentially deny a permit based on past 
criminal convictions. Also as part of the process, the City Planner must approve the 
proposed location for bingo games to ensure the location is proper for the use and that 
the site can meet capacity requirements. 

• Allowing the Chief of Police to revoke a permit if the game is played inconsistent with 
the Town’s ordinance or the Penal Code. As part of the revocation process, the applicant 
will have the right to appeal the Police Chief’s decision to the City Manager.  

• Bingo is only allowed to be played after 11:00 a.m. up until midnight, but cannot be 
played overnight hours. 

• The Chief of Police will have the right to inspect any bingo game being conducted, along 
with records from the organization hosting the bingo game. 

Council Adopted Values 
 
The City Council’s adoption of the ordinance is both fair and responsible. It is fair as it allows 
non-profit organizations the right to conduct bingo in the Town in an effort to raise additional 
charitable funds.  It is also responsible as the ordinance includes additional safeguards in an 
effort to ensure the public health, safety and welfare is adequately protected. 
 
Alternatives 

The City Council could choose not to introduce and adopt the ordinance. This would mean that 
non-profit entities seeking to conduct bingo in the Town would be denied the opportunity to do 
so. As such, it is not recommended. 

CONCLUSION 

The City Council should introduce the ordinance. 

ATTACHMENTS 
A. Ordinance 

 
 

Staff Report Bingo Ordinance   Page 3 of 3 
25977.00100\24432290.1  
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



ORDINANCE NO. __ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

ORDINANCE ADDING A NEW SUBCHAPTER 4.14 OF THE 
COLMA MUNICIPAL CODE, RELATING TO BINGO GAMES 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does ordain as follows: 

ARTICLE 1. CMC SUBCHAPTER 4.14 ADDED.  

A new subchapter 4.14, Bingo Games, is hereby added to Chapter 4, Business Activities to read 
as follows: 

Subchapter 4.14: BINGO GAMES 

4.14.010 Findings and Purpose 

The purpose of this subchapter is to allow certain organizations to conduct bingo games in the 
Town of Colma consistent with California Penal Code Section 326.5. As used in this subchapter, 
"bingo" means a game of chance in which prizes are awarded on the basis of designated 
numbers or symbols on a card, which conform to numbers or symbols selected at random.  

4.14.020 Organizations Eligible to Conduct Bingo Games 

(a) Pursuant to the provisions of California Penal Code Section 326.5, Section 19 of Article 
IV of the State Constitution, and this subchapter, the following organizations are allowed to 
conduct bingo games in the Town of Colma, provided they first comply with the permit 
requirements of this subchapter, meet all other requirements of this subchapter and any other 
state or local laws, and provide an identifiable benefit to the Town or the community at large, 
provide a service that complements or enhances a service that the Town of Colma also provides 
to its residents or businesses; or provide a service that the Town could provide to its residents 
or businesses but chooses not to: 

(1) Organizations exempted from the payment of the bank and corporation tax by 
Sections 23701a, 23701b, 23701d, 23701e, 23701f, 23701g, 23701k, 23701w, 
and 23701l of the Revenue and Taxation Code; 

(2) Mobilehome park associations; 

(3) Senior citizens organizations; or 

(3) Charitable organizations affiliated with a school district. 

4.14.030 Permit Required 

(a) Any organization seeking to conduct a bingo game in the Town shall first file with the 
Chief of Police, a bingo application, including any required background check fee, or other fee, 
in an amount set by City Council resolution, or authorized by Penal Code Section 326.5.  

Ord No. ___ Bingo Ordinance Page 1 of 6 
25977.00100\24417811.2  

Attachment A



(b) The application shall provide the following information: 

(1) The name of the applicant organization and an explanation as to why the 
applicant is a qualified organization, as provided for in this subchapter, to 
conduct bingo; 

(2) The name and signature of at least two officers, (including the presiding officer) 
of the organization; 

(3) Any information deemed necessary by the City Planner and the Chief of Police to 
determine whether the proposed location for the bingo game meets the 
necessary requirements of the Town’s Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, Building 
Code, and any other applicable state and local laws; 

(4) A statement under penalty of perjury, certifying that the address at which the 
organization is seeking authority to conduct bingo games pursuant to this 
subchapter is the address of property owned or leased by the organization, or 
property donated to it and that is used by the organization for an office or for 
the performance of the purposes for which the organization is organized; 

(5) The application shall include, as attachments, certificates of the Franchise Tax 
Board and the U.S. Internal Revenue Service establishing that the organization is 
currently exempted from the payment of the Bank and Corporation Tax pursuant 
to the applicable provisions of the Revenue and Taxation Code cited in this 
subchapter, or any other documentation necessary, as reasonably determined by 
the Chief of Police, to document how the organization meets the criteria of this 
subchapter; and 

(6) A statement under penalty of perjury that the applicant has read and 
understands the provisions of California Penal Code Section 326.5. 

4.14.040 Application Review  

(a) Upon receipt of an application, the Chief of Police shall conduct such investigation as he 
may deem necessary and proper into the background of the applicant and other persons to be 
associated with the conduct of the bingo games. 

(b) The City Planner shall review and approve the proposed location for the bingo game 
based on the applicable provisions of the Town’s Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, Building 
Code, and any other applicable state and local laws. The City Planner shall have the discretion 
to disapprove of the proposed location based on the Town’s Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, 
Building Code, and any other applicable state and local laws, including the protection of the 
public health, safety and welfare. 

(c) Upon completion of his or her investigation, the Chief of Police may approve or deny the 
application, in consultation with the City Planner, and may impose a requirement that security 
personnel be present during any proposed bingo game, along with any other conditions or 
requirements deemed necessary to ensure the public health, safety and welfare. 

Ord No. ___ Bingo Ordinance  Page 2 of 6 
25977.00100\24417811.2  



(d) Permits issued pursuant to this subchapter shall be valid for a one year period, and may 
be renewed annually thereafter without further payment of a processing fee; 

(e) Notwithstanding the foregoing, an application shall be denied by the Chief of Police upon 
finding that any one of the following conditions exist or occur: 

(1) The applicant or any person financially interested in the organization has been 
convicted of a felony, an offense perpetrated with the use of deceit or fraud, or 
an offense involving moral turpitude; 

(2) The applicant has knowingly made a false, misleading, or fraudulent statement 
of facts in the application or another document required by the Town pursuant to 
this subchapter; 

(3) The applicant or any person financially interested in the organization is not of 
good moral character or reputation;  

(4) The bingo operation that is the subject of the application is not in compliance 
with applicable local and state laws.  

4.14.050 Permit Revocation  

(a) The Chief of Police may suspend, modify or revoke any permit issued pursuant to this 
subchapter if: 

(1) The information contained in the application is false or misleading, or 

(2) The bingo game authorized pursuant to the permit fails to comply with the 
provisions of Penal Code Section 326.5, the provisions of this subchapter, or the 
terms and conditions of the permit.  

(b) The chief of police shall give written notice to the permittee at least ten days prior to the 
proposed suspension or revocation, and the notice shall set a hearing on the tenth day or a 
reasonable time thereafter. The permittee may attend the hearing and submit evidence and 
information as to whether the permit should be suspended, modified or revoked. The Chief of 
Police shall issue an order within ten days after the hearing date. 

4.14.060 Disapproval, Suspension or Revocation of Permit - Appeals  

(a) Any applicant whose application has been denied, or whose permit has been suspended 
or revoked, may appeal such action by filing with the City Manager a written notice of appeal 
within fifteen calendar days after the date of such action by the Chief of Police and by serving 
such notice personally by mail upon the Chief of Police. 

(b) Upon receipt of a written notice of appeal, the City Manager, or his or her designee, 
shall fix a date for hearing the appeal, not more than thirty days from the date of the Town’s 
receipt of the written notice of appeal. The City Manager shall also designate the time and place 
where the hearing is to be held.  The Town shall provide at least ten days’ written notice to the 
applicant of such hearing date and location. 

Ord No. ___ Bingo Ordinance  Page 3 of 6 
25977.00100\24417811.2  



(c) At any such hearing, the applicant shall be given the opportunity to be heard but formal 
rules of evidence shall not apply. 

(d) The City Manager, or his or her designee, shall affirm, modify or reverse the action of 
the Chief of Police. The decision of the City Manager or his designee shall be final. 

4.14.070 Location of Bingo Games; Hours of Operation 

(a) An organization authorized to conduct bingo games shall conduct a bingo game only on 
property that has been reviewed and approved by the City Planner, and that is owned or leased 
by it, or property the use of which is donated to the organization for an office or for 
performance of the purposes for which the organization is organized. 

(b) An organization authorized to conduct bingo games pursuant to this subchapter shall not 
conduct or operate any such game or games between the hours of midnight and 11:00 A.M.  

4.14.080 Right to Inspect 

The Chief of Police, or his or her designee, shall have the authority to inspect the premises and 
records of a permittee relating to bingo games at any reasonable time, including but not limited 
to times during which games are being conducted, to insure that the operation of bingo games 
does not constitute a violation of any applicable state or local law. All records relating to bingo 
games shall be maintained for at least three years. Failure to permit such inspection upon a 
reasonable notice shall be grounds for revocation or suspension of a permit. 

4.14.090 Penalty 

It shall be a misdemeanor for any person to receive a profit, wage or salary from any bingo 
game authorized under this subchapter. A violation of this section shall be punishable by a fine 
not to exceed ten thousand dollars, as provided in Section 326.5(c) of the Penal Code, which 
fine shall be deposited in the Town’s general fund. 

4.14.100 Minors 

It shall be unlawful for any minor to participate in any bingo game. 

4.14.110 Open to the Public 

All bingo games allowed by this subchapter shall be open to the public, not just to the members 
of the nonprofit charitable organization. 

4.14.120 Staffing 

A bingo game shall be operated and staffed only by members of the nonprofit charitable 
organization which organized it. Such members shall not receive a profit, wage, or salary from 
the bingo game. Only the organization authorized to conduct a bingo game shall operate such 
game, or participate in the promotion, supervision, or any other phase of such game.  

4.14.130 Financial Interest 

Ord No. ___ Bingo Ordinance  Page 4 of 6 
25977.00100\24417811.2  



It shall be unlawful for any individual, corporation, partnership, or other legal entity, except the 
organization authorized to conduct a bingo game, to hold a financial interest in the conduct of 
such bingo game. 

4.14.140 Special Fund 

(a) With respect to organizations exempt from payment of the bank and corporation tax by 
Section 23701d of the Revenue and Taxation Code, all profits derived from a bingo game shall 
be kept in a special fund or account and shall not be commingled with any other fund or 
account. Those profits shall be used only for charitable purposes.  

(b) With respect to other organizations authorized to conduct bingo games pursuant to this 
subchapter, all proceeds derived from a bingo game shall be kept in a special fund or account 
and shall not be commingled with any other fund or account. Those proceeds shall be used only 
for charitable purposes, except as permitted in Penal Code section 326.5. 

4.14.150 Participants to be Present 

It shall be unlawful for any person to participate in a bingo game unless such person is 
physically present at the time and place in which the bingo game is being conducted. 

4.14.160 Prizes 

The total value of prizes awarded during the conduct of any bingo games shall not exceed five 
hundred dollars in cash or kind, or both, for each separate game which is held.  

4.14.170 Conduct of Bingo Games 

Except as otherwise provided in this subchapter, all bingo games shall be conducted in 
compliance with all applicable state and local laws, including Penal Code section 326.5. 

ARTICLE 2. SEVERABILITY. 

Each of the provisions of this ordinance is severable from all other provisions. If any article, 
section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is for any reason 
held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity 
of the remaining portions of this ordinance. 

ARTICLE 3. NOT A CEQA PROJECT.  

The City Council finds that adoption of this ordinance is not a "project," as defined in the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) because it does not have a potential for resulting in 
either a direct physical change in the environment or a reasonably foreseeable indirect physical 
change in the environment pursuant to CEQA Guideline 15061(b)(3) and concerns general 
policy and procedure making. Further, prior to the time a permit is issued, the Town shall 
determine whether individual CEQA review is required based on potential environmental 
impacts associated with a respective permit. 

Ord No. ___ Bingo Ordinance  Page 5 of 6 
25977.00100\24417811.2  



ARTICLE 4. EFFECTIVE DATE. 

This ordinance including the vote for and against the same shall be posted in the office of the 
City Clerk and on the three (3) official bulletin boards of the Town of Colma within 15 days of 
its passage and shall take force and effect thirty (30) days after its passage. 

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Ordinance No. ### was introduced at a regular meeting of the City 
Council of the Town of Colma held on February 10, 2016, and duly adopted at a regular 
meeting of said City Council held on __________, 2016 by the following vote: 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 

  Aye No Abstain Present, Recused  Absent 

Diana Colvin, Mayor      

Helen Fisicaro       

Raquel Gonzalez      

Joseph Silva      

Joanne del Rosario      

Voting Tally      

 
 

Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Diana Colvin, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 

Ord No. ___ Bingo Ordinance  Page 6 of 6 
25977.00100\24417811.2  



STAFF REPORT

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM: Brad Donohue, Public Works Director 

Christopher J. Diaz, City Attorney 

VIA:  Sean Rabé, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: February 10, 2016 

SUBJECT: Peninsula Clean Energy  

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council: 

INTRODUCE AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE IMPLEMENTATION OF A COMMUNITY 
CHOICE AGGREGATION PROGRAM PURSUANT TO CEQA GUIDELINES 15061(b)(3), 
15308, AND 15378, AND WAIVE A FURTHER READING OF THE ORDINANCE 

ADOPT A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE THE 
JOINT EXERCISE OF POWERS AGREEMENT, WHICH WILL ESTABLISH THE PENINSULA 
CLEAN ENERGY AUTHORITY WITH THE CITY AS A CHARTER MEMBER, AND 
APPOINTING A DIRECTOR AND ALTERNATE DIRECTOR 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The City Council is being asked to: 

 Introduce and adopt an ordinance. The City Council’s introduction and adoption of the
proposed ordinance will authorize the implementation of a community choice
aggregation program within the Town. This means that Town consumers will have their
power provided by Peninsula Clean Energy unless a Town consumer opts out. Upon
opting out, the Town consumer will continue to have their power provided by the
incumbent utility Pacific Gas & Electric (“PG&E”). If the City Council authorizes the
implementation of a community choice aggregation program within the Town, all billing
and service related issues will continue to be provided by PG&E. The only distinction is
that the power itself will no longer be provided by PG&E but will instead be provided by
Peninsula Clean Energy.

 Adopt a resolution. The City Council’s adoption of the resolution will authorize the Town
to become a charter member in the Peninsula Clean Energy Joint Powers Authority.
Becoming a member of the Joint Powers Authority will provide the Town with
involvement as to how Peninsula Clean Energy is managed, as well as a seat on the
Peninsula Clean Energy Joint Powers Authority Board of Directors.

Staff Report Peninsula Clean Energy CCA  Page 1 of 5 
25977.00100\24417748.1

Item #8



FISCAL IMPACT 

The City Council’s adoption of the ordinance authorizing the implementation of a community 
choice aggregation program in the Town is not anticipated to cause any fiscal impact. Although 
the Town itself, along with other Town consumers, will pay rates set by the Peninsula Clean 
Energy Authority, it is anticipated that these rates will be competitive with existing rates set by 
the incumbent utility, Pacific Gas & Electric. 

The City Council’s adoption of the resolution authorizing the Town to become charter member 
in the Peninsula Clean Energy Joint Powers Authority (“JPA”) will not normally have financial 
impacts on the Town. This is especially true as all debts and liabilities associated with JPA will 
be debts and liabilities of the JPA, and not the Town. However, a situation or circumstance may 
arise where the Town seeks to no longer be a charter member of the JPA. If that were to occur, 
the Town may be subject to financial obligations from any electrical energy contracts executed 
by the JPA prior to the date the Town withdraws.  

BACKGROUND 

California Assembly Bill 117, passed in 2002, allows California cities and counties to pool the 
electric load of their residents, businesses and public facilities in order to purchase and develop 
clean electricity. Community Choice Aggregation or “CCA” is a mechanism by which local 
governments assume responsibility for providing electrical power for residential and commercial 
customers in their jurisdiction. Although the CCA will provide the power in lieu of the incumbent 
utility PG&E, PG&E will still be responsible for billing, maintenance, and other basic services to 
Town consumers.  

On December 9, 2014, the County of San Mateo Board of Supervisors directed its staff to 
explore the feasibility of a CCA in San Mateo County, including conducting a focused outreach 
effort to educate and engage staff, city managers and city councils about the program. 
Outreach efforts showed that there was interest among cities in the county for the creation of 
such a program. 

On February 24, 2015, the County of San Mateo allocated $300,000 to fund Phase 1 of the CCA 
program, which included the following activities: hiring a program consultant (LEAN Energy 
U.S.) to provide guidance and project management support; commissioning a study to 
determine the economic and technical feasibility of starting a CCA program in San Mateo 
County, which was completed by Pacific Energy Advisors, Inc.; hiring a creative services 
consultant to develop a website and related graphics for the program; and creating and 
supporting an Advisory Committee co-chaired by San Mateo County Supervisor Board President 
Carole Groom and County Supervisor Dave Pine. The Committee is comprised of representatives 
from all the cities in the county, as well as relevant stakeholder organizations. 

On October 20, 2015, the County introduced an ordinance authorizing a CCA program within 
the unincorporated area of the County and allocated $800,000 to fund Phase 2 of the CCA 
program. Phase 2 includes the following activities: Peninsula Clean Energy JPA formation and 
program design; energy product investigation and supply portfolio recommendations; city 
outreach and informational support for local ordinance adoption; implementation plan 
development; and community engagement, marketing, and communication. 

Staff Report Peninsula Clean Energy CCA   Page 2 of 5 
25977.00100\24417748.1  
 



On November 12, 2015, the City Council of the Town of Colma received a presentation 
regarding the CCA program from the San Mateo Office of Sustainability. 

Several cities and towns in San Mateo County have joined the JPA, along with the County of 
San Mateo, including the Town of Atherton and the City of San Mateo. Over the next month, it 
is anticipated that several other municipalities will become a part of the JPA.  

ANALYSIS 

Public Utilities Code Section 366.2(c)(12)(B) expressly contemplates creation of a Joint Powers 
Authority so that a county and a city or cities can “participate as a group in a community choice 
aggregation program.” The County and each city can begin to take advantage of this option by 
doing two things: (1) adopting an Ordinance to implement a CCA program within its jurisdiction 
as required by Section 366.2(c)(12)(A); and (2) entering into a Joint Powers Agreement forming 
a Joint Powers Authority under Section 6500, et seq. of the Government Code. 

The Ordinance Authorizing the Implementation of the CCA 

In order to participate in the CCA, each governmental agency must adopt an ordinance to 
authorize the CCA to provide power to its consumers.  

The proposed ordinance authorizes the implementation of a CCA program within the Town. This 
means, that Town consumers will have their power provided by Peninsula Clean Energy unless 
a Town consumer opts out. Pursuant to Public Utilities Code Section 366.2(c)(13), a Town 
consumer would have the right to opt-out of the CCA program and continue to receive power 
from the incumbent utility PG&E. Consumers who wish to continue to receive power from PG&E 
will be able to do so. In fact, Peninsula Clean Energy is required to provide Town consumers at 
least four notices of their rights to continue to receive power from PG&E. It is important to note 
that whoever provides power to a Town consumer, be it Peninsula Clean Energy or PG&E, the 
Town consumer will receive that power over the same transmission and distribution lines as 
before, and receive the same billing statement from PG&E. 

Resolution to Enter into the Joint Powers Agreement 

The Peninsula Clean Energy Joint Powers Authority will become effective upon approval and 
execution of the Joint Powers Agreement by the County and at least two cities. The framework 
of the Agreement initially originated from a similar agreement that was used to form Sonoma 
Clean Power in Sonoma, California. 

As part of drafting the Agreement, feedback on key decision points was obtained from the 
Advisory Committee, of which Brad Donohue, the Town’s Public Works Director was a member, 
and the County Board of Supervisors during a Study Session held on October 6, 2015. 
Additionally, a first draft of the agreement was circulated to all of the city attorneys and two in-
person meetings were held with city attorney representatives. During those meetings numerous 
changes to the agreement were made to address issues raised by the various representatives. 
The attached Agreement reflects that collaborative effort.  

Key provisions of the JPA Agreement include: 

Staff Report Peninsula Clean Energy CCA   Page 3 of 5 
25977.00100\24417748.1  
 



 Cities in the County join the JPA as full members of the JPA rather than mere 
“participants” in the CCA program. 

 In Section 3.1, the JPA Agreement requires each city or town to appoint a Director that 
from its respective City Council. 

 In Section 3.7 of the JPA Agreement, a two-tiered voting system is allowed based both 
on majority vote as well as a weighted vote that takes into account the energy use 
within the jurisdiction so as to create a fair balance of power amongst the members. 
Although all actions of the JPA Board will be taken by majority vote with such vote 
normally final, the weighted voting system will be triggered if any one Director makes 
the request for a weighted vote. If a Director makes such a request with respect to 
approval of any such matter, then approval of such matter shall require the affirmative 
vote of a majority of Directors present at the meeting and the affirmative vote of 
Directors having a majority of voting shares present. Because the Town of Colma is a 
smaller jurisdiction in size and likely has less energy use, it will likely have fewer shares 
in the weighted voting system. 

 In Section 2.2 of the JPA Agreement, it states that any debts and liabilities are incurred 
by the JPA and not the members, such as the Town of Colma. This is an important 
provision as it ensures that any on-going debts and liabilities of the JPA cannot impact 
the Town’s finances. 

 In Article 6 of the JPA Agreement, it acknowledges that members, such as the Town of 
Colma, can withdraw from the JPA without financial obligation if prior to launch of the 
CCA Program the Authority cannot meet its pricing and environmental goals. This 
section of the Agreement also discusses the financial obligations of the Town if it 
chooses to leave the JPA after the launch of the program and after the JPA has executed 
contracts with power providers. Although there is a waiting period that can be 
implemented to address any financial obligations, the City Council should be aware that 
financial implications for the Town can occur in this very limited circumstance. 

It is important to note that participating in the CCA program does not require outlay of any 
Town funds. The County of San Mateo has provided seed money and future expenses will be 
covered by revenues from ratepayers. One of the claimed advantages of the program is that 
unlike the incumbent utility PG&E, Peninsula Clean Energy will not be a profit-driven enterprise. 
All revenues over expenses can be reinvested to improve pricing, focus on environmentally 
conscious power purchases and fund locally beneficial power projects at the election of the JPA 
Board of Directors. 

Finally, as part of the City Council’s adoption of the resolution to join the Peninsula Clean 
Energy JPA, the City Council should select a Director for the Board, as well as an Alternate 
Director.  

Council Adopted Values 
 
The City Council adoption of the ordinance and resolution to authorize a CCA program in the 
Town is visionary as it looks toward the future in reducing greenhouse gas emissions in the 

Staff Report Peninsula Clean Energy CCA   Page 4 of 5 
25977.00100\24417748.1  
 



State of California, and allows the Town’s power consumers to have a choice in who provides 
their electrical energy.  
 
Sustainability Impact 

The implementation of a CCA Program in the Town and in the County is anticipated to reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions, and will assist the Town in meeting its goals in the Town’s Climate 
Action Plan. Further, funds from the CCA program can be used, pursuant to state law, to re-
invest in the program itself and in other energy related programs. 
 
Alternatives 

The City Council could choose not to adopt the ordinance and resolution. Doing so would mean 
the CCA program would not be implemented in the Town. If this were to occur, Town 
consumers would continue to receive power from PG&E and would not have the choice to join 
Peninsula Clean Energy. Greenhouse gas emissions may not decrease to the extent they may if 
power was provided by Peninsula Clean Energy. As you may know, the Town is required to 
meet certain reductions in greenhouse gas emissions pursuant to state law.  

CONCLUSION 

The City Council should introduce the ordinance and adopt the resolution. 

ATTACHMENTS 
A. Ordinance 
B. Resolution 
C. Joint Powers Agreement 

 
 

Staff Report Peninsula Clean Energy CCA   Page 5 of 5 
25977.00100\24417748.1  
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



ORDINANCE NO. __ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE IMPLEMENTATION  
OF A COMMUNITY CHOICE AGGREGATION PROGRAM PURSUANT TO CEQA 

GUIDELINES 15061(B)(3), 15308, AND 15378 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does ordain as follows: 

ARTICLE 1. FINDINGS 

(a) The City Council of the Town of Colma has investigated options to provide 
electric services to customers within the Town, with the intent of achieving greater local control 
and involvement over the provision of electric services, competitive electric rates, the 
development of clean, local, renewable energy projects, reduced greenhouse gas emissions, 
and the wider implementation of energy conservation and efficiency projects and program. 

(b) The County of San Mateo has prepared a Feasibility Study for a community 
choice aggregation (“CCA”) program in San Mateo County under the provisions of the Public 
Utilities Code section 366.2. The Feasibility Study shows that implementing a community choice 
aggregation program would provide multiple benefits, including: 

(1) Providing customers a choice of power providers; 

(2) Increasing local control and involvement in and collaboration on energy rates 
and other energy-related matters; 

(3) Providing more stable long-term electric rates that are competitive with those 
provided by the incumbent utility; 

(4) Reducing greenhouse gas emissions arising from electricity use within San Mateo 
County; 

(5) Increasing local renewable generation capacity; 

(6) Increasing energy conservation and efficiency projects and programs; 

(7) Increasing regional energy self-sufficiency; 

(8) Improving the local economy resulting from the implementation of local 
renewable and energy conservation and efficiency projects. 

(c) The County of San Mateo Board of Supervisors has directed staff to bring for its 
approval a Joint Powers Agreement creating the Peninsula Clean Energy Authority (“Authority”). 
Under the Joint Powers Agreements, cities and towns within San Mateo County may participate 
in the Peninsula Clean Energy CCA program by adopting the resolution and ordinance required 
by Public Utilities Code section 366.2. Cities and towns choosing to participate in the CCA 

Ord No. ___ Peninsula Clean Energy CCA Implementation Ordinance Page 1 of 3 
25977.00100\24417747.1  

Attachment A



program will have membership on the Board of Directors of the Authority as provided in the 
Joint Powers Agreements. 

(d) The Authority will enter into Agreements with electric power suppliers and other 
service providers, and based upon those Agreements the Authority will be able to provide 
power to residents and business at rates that are competitive with those of the incumbent utility 
(“PG&E”). Once the California Public Utilities Commission approves the implementation plan 
created by the Authority, the Authority will provide service to customers within the 
unincorporated area of San Mateo County and within the jurisdiction of those cities who have 
chosen to participate in the CCA program. 

(e) Under Public Utilities Code Section 366.2, customers have the right to opt-out of 
a CCA program and continue to receive service from the incumbent utility. Customers who wish 
to continue to receive service from the incumbent utility will be able to do so. 

(f) On November 12, 2015, the City Council of the Town Colma had a presentation 
on the Peninsula Clean Energy CCA, and on February 10, 2016, the City Council of the Town of 
Colma held a public hearing at which time interested persons had an opportunity to testify 
either in support or opposition to implementation of the Peninsula Clean Energy CCA program in 
the Town. 

ARTICLE 2. NOT A CEQA PROJECT 

This ordinance is exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) pursuant to the State CEQA Guidelines, as it is not a “project” as it has no potential to 
result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change to the environment. (14 Cal. 
Code Regs. § 15378(a)). Further, the ordinance is exempt from CEQA as there is no possibility 
that the ordinance or its implementation would have a significant effect on the environment. 
(14 Cal. Code Regs. § 15061(b)(3)).  The ordinance is also categorically exempt because it is an 
action taken by a regulatory agency to assume the maintenance, restoration, enhancement or 
protection of the environment.  (14 Cal. Code Regs. § 15308).  

ARTICLE 3. AUTHORIZATION TO IMPLEMENT CCA PROGRAM 

The above findings are true and correct and material to this Ordinance. Based upon the 
forgoing, and in order to provide business and residents within the Town of Colma with a choice 
of power providers and with the benefits described above, the  City Council of the Town of 
Colma hereby ordains that it shall implement a community choice aggregation program within 
its jurisdiction by participating as a group, with the County of San Mateo and other cities and 
towns as described above, in the Community Choice Aggregation program of the Peninsula 
Clean Energy Authority, as generally described in the Joint Powers Agreement. 

ARTICLE 4. EFFECTIVE DATE 

This ordinance including the vote for and against the same shall be posted in the office of the 
City Clerk and on the three (3) official bulletin boards of the Town of Colma within 15 days of 
its passage and shall take force and effect thirty (30) days after its adoption. 

Ord No. ___ Peninsula Clean Energy CCA Implementation Ordinance Page 2 of 3 
25977.00100\24417747.1  



Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Ordinance No. ### was introduced at a regular meeting of the City 
Council of the Town of Colma held on February 10, 2016, and duly adopted at a regular 
meeting of said City Council held on __________, 2016 by the following vote: 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 

  Aye No Abstain Present, Recused  Absent 

Diana Colvin, Mayor      

Helen Fisicaro       

Raquel Gonzalez      

Joseph Silva      

Joanne del Rosario      

Voting Tally      

 
 

Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Diana Colvin, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 

Ord No. ___ Peninsula Clean Energy CCA Implementation Ordinance Page 3 of 3 
25977.00100\24417747.1  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-## 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE THE JOINT 
EXERCISE OF POWERS AGREEMENT, WHICH WILL ESTABLISH THE PENINSULA 

CLEAN ENERGY AUTHORITY WITH THE CITY AS A CHARTER MEMBER, AND 
APPOINTING A DIRECTOR AND ALTERNATE DIRECTOR 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve as follows: 

1. Background and Findings

(a) The City Council of the Town of Colma has investigated options to provide 
electric services to customers within the Town, with the intent of achieving greater local control 
and involvement over the provision of electric services, competitive electric rates, the 
development of clean, local, renewable energy projects, reduced greenhouse gas emissions, 
and the wider implementation of energy conservation and efficiency projects and program. 

(b) The County of San Mateo has prepared a Feasibility Study for a community 
choice aggregation (“CCA”) program in San Mateo County under the provisions of the Public 
Utilities Code section 366.2. The Feasibility Study shows that implementing a community choice 
aggregation program would provide multiple benefits, including: 

(1) Providing customers a choice of power providers; 

(2) Increasing local control and involvement in and collaboration on energy rates 
and other energy-related matters; 

(3) Providing more stable long-term electric rates that are competitive with those 
provided by the incumbent utility; 

(4) Reducing greenhouse gas emissions arising from electricity use within San Mateo 
County; 

(5) Increasing local renewable generation capacity; 

(6) Increasing energy conservation and efficiency projects and programs; 

(7) Increasing regional energy self-sufficiency; 

(8) Improving the local economy resulting from the implementation of local 
renewable and energy conservation and efficiency projects. 

(c) The City wishes to be a community choice aggregator and has introduced the 
Ordinance required by Public Utilities Code Section 366.2 in order to do so. 

(d) The County of San Mateo has already become a community choice aggregator 
and believes that other cities and towns within San Mateo County also wish to be community 
choice aggregators. 

Res. 2015-__, Peninsula Clean Energy Joint Powers Authority Agreement Page 1 of 3 
25977.00100\24417742.1  

Attachment B



(e) Pursuant to Public Utilities Coe Section 366.2, two or more entities authorized to 
be a community choice aggregator, may participate as a group in a community choice 
aggregation program through a joint powers agency established pursuant to Chapter 5 
(commencing with Section 6500) of Division 7 of Title 1 of the Government Code, if each entity 
adopts the aforementioned ordinance.  

(f) There has been presented to this City Council for its consideration and 
acceptance a Joint Powers Agreement, reference to which is hereby made for further 
particulars, whereby the Town of Colma shall participate in the creation of the Peninsula Clean 
Energy Authority (“Authority”) with the County, and at least one other city and/or towns, and 
become a charter member. 

(g) The Joint Powers Agreement entered into between the County of San Mateo and 
the participating cities of the Peninsula will create and form the Peninsula Clean Energy 
Authority (“Authority”). Under the Joint Powers Agreement, the County and cities and towns 
within San Mateo County choosing to participate in the CCA program will have membership on 
the Board of Directors of the Authority as provided in the Joint Powers Agreement if they 
execute the Agreement and adopt the ordinance required by the Public Utilities Code. 

(h) The newly created Authority will enter into Agreements with electric power 
suppliers and other service providers, and based upon those Agreements the Authority will be 
able to provide power to residents and business at rates that are competitive with those of the 
incumbent utility (“PG&E”). Once the California Public Utilities Commission approves the 
implementation plan created by the Authority, the Authority will provide service to customers 
within the unincorporated area of San Mateo County and within the jurisdiction of those cities 
who have chosen to participate in the CCA program. 

(i) Under Public Utilities Code Section 366.2, customers have the right to opt-out of 
a CCA program and continue to receive service from the incumbent utility. Customers who wish 
to continue to receive service from the incumbent utility will be able to do so. 

(j) This City Council has been presented with a form of such Agreement and has 
examined and approved the Agreement as to both form and content and desires to enter into 
the Agreement. 

2. Order 

(a) The City Council of the Town of Colma wishes to enter into the Joint Exercise of 
Powers Agreement with the County and other participating Cities and Towns of the Peninsula to 
form the Peninsula Clean Power Agency and the Mayor is authorized and directed to execute 
the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement, which will establish the Authority with the Town as a 
charter member. 

(b) [Name] is appointed to be the Town’s Director on the Board, [Name] is appointed 
the Town’s Alternate Director, and the City Manager is authorized to execute any and all other 
necessary documents to enter into the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement to form Peninsula 
Clean Energy. 

 

Res. 2015-__, Peninsula Clean Energy Joint Powers Authority Agreement Page 2 of 3 
25977.00100\24417742.1  



Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2016-## was duly adopted at a regular meeting of 
said City Council held on February 10, 2016 by the following vote: 
 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 

  Aye No Abstain Present, Recused  Absent 

Diana Colvin, Mayor      

Helen Fisicaro       

Raquel Gonzalez      

Joseph Silva      

Joanne del Rosario      

Voting Tally      

 
 
Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Diana Colvin, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 

Res. 2015-__, Peninsula Clean Energy Joint Powers Authority Agreement Page 3 of 3 
25977.00100\24417742.1  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



JOINT EXERCISE OF POWERS AGREEMENT RELATING TO
AND CREATING THE 

PENINSULA CLEAN ENERGY AUTHORITY 

OF 

SAN MATEO COUNTY

This Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement, effective on the date determined by Section 2.1, is made 
and entered into pursuant to the provisions of Title 1, Division 7, Chapter 5, Article 1 (Sections 
6500 et seq.) of the California Government Code relating to the joint exercise of powers among the 
Parties set forth in Exhibit B, and establishes the Peninsula Clean Energy Authority (“Authority”), 
is by and between the County of San Mateo (“County”) and those cities and towns within the 
County of San Mateo who become signatories to this Agreement, and relates to the joint exercise 
of powers among the signatories hereto. 

RECITALS 

A. The Parties share various powers under California law, including but not limited to the 
power to purchase, supply, and aggregate electricity for themselves and customers within 
their jurisdictions. 

B. In 2006, the State Legislature adopted AB 32, the Global Warming Solutions Act, which 
mandates a reduction in greenhouse gas emissions in 2020 to 1990 levels. The California 
Air Resources Board is promulgating regulations to implement AB 32 which will require 
local governments to develop programs to reduce greenhouse gas emissions. 

C. The purposes for entering into this Agreement include: 

a. Reducing greenhouse gas emissions related to the use of power in San Mateo
County and neighboring regions;

b. Providing electric power and other forms of energy to customers at a competitive
cost;

c. Carrying out programs to reduce energy consumption;

d. Stimulating and sustaining the local economy by developing local jobs in
renewable energy; and

e. Promoting long-term electric rate stability and energy security and reliability for
residents through local control of electric generation resources.

D. It is the intent of this Agreement to promote the development and use of a wide range of 
renewable energy sources and energy efficiency programs, including but not limited to 

Page 1 of 14 Approved [insert date] 

Attachment C



solar, wind, and biomass energy production. The purchase of renewable power and 
greenhouse gas-free energy sources will be the desired approach to decrease regional 
greenhouse gas emissions and accelerate the State’s transition to clean power resources to 
the extent feasible. The Agency will also add increasing levels of locally generated 
renewable resources as these projects are developed and customer energy needs expand. 

 
E. The Parties desire to establish a separate public agency, known as the Peninsula Clean 

Energy Authority, under the provisions of the Joint Exercise of Powers Act of the State of 
California (Government Code Section 6500 et seq.) (“Act”) in order to collectively study, 
promote, develop, conduct, operate, and manage energy programs. 

 
F. The Parties anticipate adopting an ordinance electing to implement through the Authority a 

common Community Choice Aggregation (CCA) program, an electric service enterprise 
available to cities and counties pursuant to California Public Utilities Code Sections 
331.1(c) and 366.2. The first priority of the Authority will be the consideration of those 
actions necessary to implement the CCA Program. 

 
 

AGREEMENT 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, and conditions 
hereinafter set forth, it is agreed by and among the Parties as follows: 
 
 

ARTICLE 1: DEFINITIONS AND EXHIBITS 
 
1.1 Definitions. Capitalized terms used in the Agreement shall have the meanings specified in 
Exhibit A, unless the context requires otherwise. 
 
1.2 Documents Included. This Agreement consists of this document and the following 
exhibits, all of which are hereby incorporated into this Agreement. 
 

Exhibit A: Definitions 
Exhibit B: List of the Parties  
Exhibit C: Annual Energy Use 
Exhibit D: Voting Shares 
Exhibit E: Signatures 

  
 

ARTICLE 2: FORMATION OF PENINSULA CLEAN ENERGY AUTHORITY 
 
2.1 Effective Date and Term. This Agreement shall become effective and Peninsula Clean 
Energy Authority shall exist as a separate public agency on February 29, 2016 or when the County 
of San Mateo and at least two municipalities execute this Agreement, whichever occurs later. The 
Authority shall provide notice to the Parties of the Effective Date. The Authority shall continue to 
exist, and this Agreement shall be effective, until this Agreement is terminated in accordance with 
Section 6.4, subject to the rights of the Parties to withdraw from the Authority. 

Page 2 of 14 
 

Approved [insert date] 



2.2 Formation. There is formed as of the Effective Date a public agency named the Peninsula 
Clean Energy Authority. Pursuant to Sections 6506 and 6507 of the Act, the Authority is a public 
agency separate from the Parties. Pursuant to Sections 6508.1 of the Act, the debts, liabilities or 
obligations of the Authority shall not be debts, liabilities or obligations of the individual Parties 
unless the governing board of a Party agrees in writing to assume any of the debts, liabilities or 
obligations of the Authority. A Party who has not agreed to assume an Authority debt, liability or 
obligation shall not be responsible in any way for such debt, liability or obligation even if a 
majority of the Parties agree to assume the debt, liability or obligation of the Authority. 
Notwithstanding Section 7.4 of this Agreement, this Section 2.2 may not be amended unless such 
amendment is approved by the governing board of each Party. 
 
2.3 Purpose. The purpose of this Agreement is to establish an independent public agency in 
order to exercise powers common to each Party to study, promote, develop, conduct, operate, and 
manage energy, energy efficiency and conservation, and other energy-related programs, and to 
exercise all other powers necessary and incidental to accomplishing this purpose. Without limiting 
the generality of the foregoing, the Parties intend for this Agreement to be used as a contractual 
mechanism by which the Parties are authorized to participate in the CCA Program, as further 
described in Section 4.1. The Parties intend that other agreements shall define the terms and 
conditions associated with the implementation of the CCA Program and any other energy programs 
approved by the Authority. 
 
2.4 Powers. The Authority shall have all powers common to the Parties and such additional 
powers accorded to it by law. The Authority is authorized, in its own name, to exercise all powers 
and do all acts necessary and proper to carry out the provisions of this Agreement and fulfill its 
purposes, including, but not limited to, each of the following powers, subject to the voting 
requirements set forth in Section 3.7 through 3.7.5: 
 

2.4.1 to make and enter into contracts; 
 

2.4.2 to employ agents and employees, including but not limited to a Chief Executive 
Officer; 

 
2.4.3 to acquire, contract, manage, maintain, and operate any buildings, infrastructure, 
works, or improvements; 

 
2.4.4 to acquire property by eminent domain, or otherwise, except as limited under 
Section 6508 of the Act, and to hold or dispose of any property; however, the Authority 
shall not exercise the power of eminent domain within the jurisdiction of a Party over its 
objection without first meeting and conferring in good faith. 

 
2.4.5 to lease any property; 

 
2.4.6 to sue and be sued in its own name; 

 
2.4.7 to incur debts, liabilities, and obligations, including but not limited to loans from 
private lending sources pursuant to its temporary borrowing powers such as Government 
Code Sections 53850 et seq. and authority under the Act; 

 

Page 3 of 14 
 

Approved [insert date] 



2.4.8   to form subsidiary or independent corporations or entities if necessary, to carry out 
energy supply and energy conservation programs at the lowest possible cost or to take 
advantage of legislative or regulatory changes; 

 
2.4.9 to issue revenue bonds and other forms of indebtedness; 

 
2.4.10 to apply for, accept, and receive all licenses, permits, grants, loans or other aids 
from any federal, state, or local public agency; 

 
2.4.11 to submit documentation and notices, register, and comply with orders, tariffs and 
agreements for the establishment and implementation of the CCA Program and other 
energy programs; 

 
2.4.12 to adopt Operating Rules and Regulations; and 

 
2.4.13 to make and enter into service agreements relating to the provision of services 
necessary to plan, implement, operate and administer the CCA Program and other energy 
programs, including the acquisition of electric power supply and the provision of retail and 
regulatory support services. 

 
2.4.14 to permit additional Parties to enter into this Agreement after the Effective Date 
and to permit another entity authorized to be a community choice aggregator to designate 
the Authority to act as the community choice aggregator on its behalf. 

 
2.5 Limitation on Powers. As required by Government Code Section 6509, the power of the 
Authority is subject to the restrictions upon the manner of exercising power possessed by San 
Mateo County. 
 
2.6 Compliance with Local Zoning and Building Laws and CEQA. Unless state or federal law 
provides otherwise, any facilities, buildings or structures located, constructed, or caused to be 
constructed by the Authority within the territory of the Authority shall comply with the General 
Plan, zoning and building laws of the local jurisdiction within which the facilities, buildings or 
structures are constructed and comply with the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”). 
 
 

ARTICLE 3: GOVERNANCE AND INTERNAL ORGANIZATION 
 

3.1 Board of Directors. The governing body of the Authority shall be a Board of Directors (“Board”). 
The Board shall consist of 2 (two) directors appointed by the San Mateo County Board of 
Supervisors and 1 (one) director appointed by each City or Town that becomes a signatory to the 
Agreement (“Directors”).  Each Director shall serve at the pleasure of the governing board of the 
Party who appointed such Director, and may be removed as Director by such governing board at 
any time. If at any time a vacancy occurs on the Board, a replacement shall be appointed to fill the 
position of the previous Director within 90 days of the date that such position becomes vacant. 
Directors must be members of the Board of Supervisors or members of the governing board of the 
municipality that is the signatory to this Agreement.  Each Party may appoint an alternate(s) to 
serve in the absence of its Director(s).  Alternates may be either (1) members of the Board of 
Supervisors or members of the governing board of the municipality that is the signatory to this 

Page 4 of 14 
 

Approved [insert date] 



Agreement, or (2) staff members of the County or any such municipality. 
 
3.2 Quorum. A majority of the appointed Directors shall constitute a quorum, except that less 
than a quorum may adjourn from time to time in accordance with law. 
 
3.3 Powers and Functions of the Board. The Board shall exercise general governance and 
oversight over the business and activities of the Authority, consistent with this Agreement and 
applicable law. The Board shall provide general policy guidance to the CCA Program. Board 
approval shall be required for any of the following actions: 
 

3.3.1 The issuance of bonds or any other financing even if program revenues are 
expected to pay for such financing. 
 

3.3.2 The hiring or termination of the Chief Executive Officer and General Counsel. 
 

3.3.3 The appointment or removal of officers described in Section 3.9, subject to Section 
3.9.3. 
 

3.3.4 The adoption of the Annual Budget. 
 

3.3.5 The adoption of an ordinance. 
 

3.3.6 The approval of agreements, except as provided by Section 3.4. 
 

3.3.7 The initiation or resolution of claims and litigation where the Authority will be the 
defendant, plaintiff, petitioner, respondent, cross complainant or cross petitioner, or 
intervenor; provided, however, that the Chief Executive Officer or General 
Counsel, on behalf of the Authority, may intervene in, become a party to, or file 
comments with respect to any proceeding pending at the California Public Utilities 
Commission, the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, or any other 
administrative agency, without approval of the Board as long as such action is 
consistent with any adopted Board policies. 
 

3.3.8 The setting of rates for power sold by the Authority and the setting of charges for 
any other category of service provided by the Authority. 
 

3.3.9 Termination of the CCA Program. 
 

3.4 Chief Executive Officer. The Board of Directors shall appoint a Chief Executive Officer 
for the Authority, who shall be responsible for the day-to-day operation and management of the 
Authority and the CCA Program. The Chief Executive Officer may exercise all powers of the 
Authority, including the power to hire, discipline and terminate employees as well as the power to 
approve any agreement if the total amount payable under the agreement is less than $100,000 in 
any fiscal year, except the powers specifically set forth in Section 3.3 or those powers which by law 
must be exercised by the Board of Directors.  
 
3.5 Commissions, Boards, and Committees. The Board may establish any advisory 

Page 5 of 14 
 

Approved [insert date] 



commissions, boards, and committees as the Board deems appropriate to assist the Board in 
carrying out its functions and implementing the CCA Program, other energy programs and the 
provisions of this Agreement which shall comply with the requirements of the Ralph M. Brown 
Act.  The Board may establish rules, regulations, policies, bylaws or procedures to govern any such 
commissions, boards, or committees if the Board deems appropriate to appoint such commissions, 
boards or committees, and shall determine whether members shall be compensated or entitled to 
reimbursement for expenses. 
 
3.6 Director Compensation. Directors shall serve without compensation from the Authority. 
However, Directors may be compensated by their respective appointing authorities. The Board, 
however, may adopt by resolution a policy relating to the reimbursement by the Authority of 
expenses incurred by Directors. 
 
3.7 Voting In general, as described below in Section 3.7.3, action by the Authority Board will 
be taken solely by a majority vote of the Directors present. However, as described below in Section 
3.7.4, upon request of a Director, a weighted vote by shares will also be conducted.  When such a 
request is made, an action must be approved by both a majority vote of Directors present and a 
majority of the weighted vote by shares present. No action may be approved solely by a vote by 
shares. The voting shares of Directors and approval requirements for actions of the Board shall be 
as follows: 
 

3.7.1. Voting Shares. 
 

Each Director shall have a voting share as determined by the following formula: (Annual 
Energy Use/Total Annual Energy) multiplied by 100, where 

 
(a) “Annual Energy Use” means, (i) with respect to the first year following the 
Effective Date, the annual electricity usage, expressed in kilowatt hours (“kWh”), 
within the Party’s respective jurisdiction and (ii) with respect to the period after the 
anniversary of the Effective Date, the annual electricity usage, expressed in kWh, 
of accounts within a Party’s respective jurisdiction that are served by the 
Authority; and 

 
(b) “Total Annual Energy” means the sum of all Parties’ Annual Energy Use. The 
initial values for Annual Energy Use will be designated in Exhibit C, and shall be 
adjusted annually as soon as reasonably practicable after January 1, but no later 
than March 1 of each year. These adjustments shall be approved by the Board. 

 
(c) The combined voting share of all Directors representing the County of San 
Mateo shall be based upon the annual electricity usage within the unincorporated 
area of San Mateo County. 
 

For the purposes of Weighted Voting, if a Party has more than one director, then the 
voting shares allocated to the entity shall be equally divided amongst its Directors. 

 
3.7.2. Exhibit Showing Voting Shares. The initial voting shares will be set forth in 
Exhibit D. Exhibit D shall be revised no less than annually as necessary to account for 
changes in the number of Parties and changes in the Parties’ Annual Energy Use.  Exhibit 

Page 6 of 14 
 

Approved [insert date] 



D and adjustments shall be approved by the Board. 
 

3.7.3. Approval Requirements Relating to CCA Program. Except as provided in Sections 
3.7.4 and 3.7.5 below, action of the Board shall require the affirmative vote of a majority 
of Directors present at the meeting. 

 
3.7.4. Option for Approval by Voting Shares. Notwithstanding Section 3.7.3, any Director 
present at a meeting may demand that approval of any matter related to the CCA Program 
be determined on the basis of both voting shares and by the affirmative vote of a majority 
of Directors present at the meeting. If a Director makes such a demand with respect to 
approval of any such matter, then approval of such matter shall require the affirmative vote 
of a majority of Directors present at the meeting and the affirmative vote of Directors 
having a majority of voting shares present, as determined by Section 3.7.1 except as 
provided in Section 3.7.5. 

 
3.7.5. Special Voting Requirements for Certain Matters. 

 
(a) Two-Thirds and Weighted Voting Approval Requirements Relating to Sections 
6.2 and 7.4. Action of the Board on the matters set forth in Section 6.2 (involuntary 
termination of a Party), or Section 7.4 (amendment of this Agreement) shall require 
the affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of Directors present; provided, however, 
that (i) notwithstanding the foregoing, any Director present at the meeting may 
demand that the vote be determined on the basis of both voting shares and by the 
affirmative vote of Directors, and if a Director makes such a demand, then 
approval shall require the affirmative vote of both at least two-thirds of Directors 
present and the affirmative vote of Directors having at least two-thirds of the 
voting shares present, as determined by Section 3.7.1; (ii) but, at least two Parties 
must vote against a matter for the vote to fail; and (iii) for votes to involuntarily 
terminate a Party under Section 6.2, the Director(s) for the Party subject to 
involuntary termination may not vote, and the number of Directors constituting 
two-thirds of all Directors, and the weighted vote of each Party shall be 
recalculated as if the Party subject to possible termination were not a Party.   
 
(b) Seventy Five Percent Special Voting Requirements for Eminent Domain and 
Contributions or Pledge of Assets. 

 
(i) A decision to exercise the power of eminent domain on behalf of the 
Authority to acquire any property interest other than an easement, right-of-way, or 
temporary construction easement shall require a vote of at least 75% of all 
Directors. 

 
(ii) The imposition on any Party of any obligation to make contributions or 
pledge assets as a condition of continued participation in the CCA Program shall 
require a vote of at least 75% of all Directors and the approval of the governing 
boards of the Parties who are being asked to make such contribution or pledge. 

 
(iii) Notwithstanding the foregoing, any Director present at the meeting may 
demand that a vote under subsections (i) or (ii) be determined on the basis of 

Page 7 of 14 
 

Approved [insert date] 



voting shares and by the affirmative vote of Directors, and if a Director makes such 
a demand, then approval shall require both the affirmative vote of at least 75% of 
Directors present and the affirmative vote of Directors having at least 75% of the 
voting shares present, as determined by Section 3.7.1, but at least two Parties must 
vote against a matter for the vote to fail. For purposes of this section, “imposition 
on any Party of any obligation to make contributions or pledge assets as a 
condition of continued participation in the CCA Program” does not include any 
obligations of a withdrawing or terminated party imposed under Section 6.3. 

 
3.8 Meetings and Special Meetings of the Board. The Board shall hold at least six regular 
meetings per year, but the Board may provide for the holding of regular meetings at more frequent 
intervals. The date, hour and place of each regular meeting shall be fixed by resolution or ordinance 
of the Board. Regular meetings may be adjourned to another meeting time. Special and Emergency 
Meetings of the Board may be called in accordance with the provisions of California Government 
Code Sections 54956 and 54956.5. Directors may participate in meetings telephonically, with full 
voting rights, only to the extent permitted by law. All meetings shall be conducted in accordance 
with the provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government Code Sections 54950 et 
seq.). 

 
3.9 Selection of Board Officers. 
 

3.9.1 Chair and Vice Chair. The Directors shall select, from among themselves, a Chair, 
who shall be the presiding officer of all Board meetings, and a Vice Chair, who shall serve 
in the absence of the Chair. The term of office of the Chair and Vice Chair shall continue 
for one year, but there shall be no limit on the number of terms held by either the Chair or 
Vice Chair. The office of either the Chair or Vice Chair shall be declared vacant and a new 
selection shall be made if:   
 

(a) the person serving dies, resigns, or the Party that the person represents 
removes the person as its representative on the Board or 
(b) the Party that he or she represents withdraws from the Authority pursuant to 
the provisions of this Agreement. 

 
3.9.2 Secretary. The Board shall appoint a Secretary, who need not be a member of the 
Board, who shall be responsible for keeping the minutes of all meetings of the Board and 
all other official records of the Authority. 

 
3.9.3 Treasurer and Auditor. The San Mateo County Treasurer shall act as the Treasurer 
for the Authority. Unless otherwise exempted from such requirement, the Authority shall 
cause an independent audit to be made by a certified public accountant, or public 
accountant, in compliance with Section 6505 of the Act. The Treasurer shall act as the 
depository of the Authority and have custody of all the money of the Authority, from 
whatever source, and as such, shall have all of the duties and responsibilities specified in 
Section 6505.5 of the Act. The Treasurer shall report directly to the Board and shall 
comply with the requirements of treasurers of incorporated municipalities. The Board may 
transfer the responsibilities of Treasurer to any person or entity as the law may provide at 
the time. The duties and obligations of the Treasurer are further specified in Article 5. 

Page 8 of 14 
 

Approved [insert date] 



 
3.10 Administrative Services Provider. The Board may appoint one or more administrative 
services providers to serve as the Authority’s agent for planning, implementing, operating and 
administering the CCA Program, and any other program approved by the Board, in accordance 
with the provisions of an Administrative Services Agreement. The appointed administrative 
services provider may be one of the Parties. An Administrative Services Agreement shall set forth 
the terms and conditions by which the appointed administrative services provider shall perform or 
cause to be performed all tasks necessary for planning, implementing, operating and administering 
the CCA Program and other approved programs. The Administrative Services Agreement shall set 
forth the term of the Agreement and the circumstances under which the Administrative Services 
Agreement may be terminated by the Authority. This section shall not in any way be construed to 
limit the discretion of the Authority to hire its own employees to administer the CCA Program or 
any other program. 

 
 

ARTICLE 4: IMPLEMENTATION ACTION AND AUTHORITY DOCUMENTS 
 
4.1 Preliminary Implementation of the CCA Program. 
 

4.1.1 Enabling Ordinance. To be eligible to participate in the CCA Program, each Party 
must adopt an ordinance in accordance with Public Utilities Code Section 366.2(c)(12) for 
the purpose of specifying that the Party intends to implement a CCA Program by and 
through its participation in the Authority. 

 
4.1.2 Implementation Plan. The Authority shall cause to be prepared an Implementation 
Plan meeting the requirements of Public Utilities Code Section 366.2 and any applicable 
Public Utilities Commission regulations as soon after the Effective Date as reasonably 
practicable. The Implementation Plan shall not be filed with the Public Utilities 
Commission until it is approved by the Board in the manner provided by Section 3.7.3. 

 
4.1.3 Termination of CCA Program. Nothing contained in this Article or this Agreement 
shall be construed to limit the discretion of the Authority to terminate the implementation 
or operation of the CCA Program at any time in accordance with any applicable 
requirements of state law. 

 
4.2 Authority Documents. The Parties acknowledge and agree that the affairs of the Authority 
will be implemented through various documents duly adopted by the Board through Board 
resolution. The Parties agree to abide by and comply with the terms and conditions of all such 
documents that may be adopted by the Board, subject to the Parties’ right to withdraw from the 
Authority as described in Article 6. 
 
 

ARTICLE 5: FINANCIAL PROVISIONS 
 
5.1 Fiscal Year. The Authority’s fiscal year shall be 12 months commencing July 1 or the date 
selected by the Agency and ending June 30. The fiscal year may be changed by Board resolution. 
 
 

Page 9 of 14 
 

Approved [insert date] 



 
5.2 Depository. 
 

5.2.1 All funds of the Authority shall be held in separate accounts in the name of the 
Authority and not commingled with funds of any Party or any other person or entity. 

 
5.2.2 All funds of the Authority shall be strictly and separately accounted for, and 
regular reports shall be rendered of all receipts and disbursements, at least quarterly during 
the fiscal year. The books and records of the Authority shall be open to inspection by the 
Parties at all reasonable times. The Board shall contract with a certified public accountant 
or public accountant to make an annual audit of the accounts and records of the Authority, 
which shall be conducted in accordance with the requirements of Section 6505 of the Act. 

 
5.2.3 All expenditures shall be made in accordance with the approved budget and upon 
the approval of any officer so authorized by the Board in accordance with its Operating 
Rules and Regulations. The Treasurer shall draw checks or warrants or make payments by 
other means for claims or disbursements not within an applicable budget only upon the 
prior approval of the Board. 

 
5.3 Budget and Recovery of Costs. 
 

5.3.1 Budget. The initial budget shall be approved by the Board.  The Board may revise 
the budget from time to time as may be reasonably necessary to address contingencies and 
unexpected expenses. All subsequent budgets of the Authority shall be approved by the 
Board in accordance with the Operating Rules and Regulations. 

 
5.3.2 Funding of Initial Costs. The County of San Mateo has funded certain activities 
necessary to implement the CCA Program. If the CCA Program becomes operational, 
these Initial Costs paid by the County of San Mateo shall be included in the customer 
charges for electric services as provided by Section 5.3.3 to the extent permitted by law, 
and the County of San Mateo shall be reimbursed from the payment of such charges by 
customers of the Authority. Prior to such reimbursement, the County of San Mateo shall 
provide such documentation of costs paid as the Board may request. The Authority may 
establish a reasonable time period over which such costs are recovered. In the event that 
the CCA Program does not become operational, the County of San Mateo shall not be 
entitled to any reimbursement of the Initial Costs it has paid from the Authority or any 
Party. 

 
5.3.3 CCA Program Costs. The Parties desire that all costs incurred by the Authority that 
are directly or indirectly attributable to the provision of electric, conservation, efficiency, 
incentives, financing, or other services provided under the CCA Program, including but 
not limited to the establishment and maintenance of various reserves and performance 
funds and administrative, accounting, legal, consulting, and other similar costs, shall be 
recovered through charges to CCA customers receiving such electric services, or from 
revenues from grants or other third-party sources. 

 
 

Page 10 of 14 
 

Approved [insert date] 



 
ARTICLE 6: WITHDRAWAL AND TERMINATION 

 
6.1 Withdrawal. 
 

6.1.1 Right to Withdraw. A Party may withdraw its participation in the CCA Program, 
effective as of the beginning of the Authority’s fiscal year, by giving no less than 6 months 
advance written notice of its election to do so, which notice shall be given to the Authority 
and each Party. Withdrawal of a Party shall require an affirmative vote of the Party’s 
governing board. 
 
6.1.2 Right to Withdraw After Amendment. Notwithstanding Section 6.1.1, a Party may 
withdraw its membership in the Authority following an amendment to this Agreement 
adopted by the Board which the Party’s Director(s) voted against provided such notice is 
given in writing within thirty (30) days following the date of the vote. Withdrawal of a 
Party shall require an affirmative vote of the Party’s governing board and shall not be 
subject to the six month advance notice provided in Section 6.1.1.  In the event of such 
withdrawal, the Party shall be subject to the provisions of Section 6.3. 

 
6.1.3 The Right to Withdraw Prior to Program Launch.  After receiving bids from power 
suppliers, the Authority must provide to the Parties the report from the electrical utility 
consultant retained by the Authority that compares the total estimated electrical rates that 
the Authority will be charging to customers as well as the estimated greenhouse gas 
emissions rate and the amount of estimated renewable energy used with that of the 
incumbent utility.  If the report provides that the Authority is unable to provide total 
electrical rates, as part of its baseline offering, to the customers that are equal to or lower 
than the incumbent utility or to provide power in a manner that has a lower greenhouse gas 
emissions rate or uses more renewable energy than the incumbent utility, a Party may 
immediately withdraw its membership in the Authority without any financial obligation, 
as long as the Party provides written notice of its intent to withdraw to the Authority 
Board no more than fifteen days after receiving the report.   

 
6.1.4 Continuing Financial Obligation; Further Assurances. Except as provided by 
Section 6.1.3, a Party that withdraws its participation in the CCA Program may be subject 
to certain continuing financial obligations, as described in Section 6.3. Each withdrawing 
Party and the Authority shall execute and deliver all further instruments and documents, 
and take any further action that may be reasonably necessary, as determined by the Board, 
to effectuate the orderly withdrawal of such Party from participation in the CCA Program. 

 
6.2 Involuntary Termination of a Party. Participation of a Party in the CCA program may be 
terminated for material non-compliance with provisions of this Agreement or any other agreement 
relating to the Party’s participation in the CCA Program upon a vote of Board members as provided 
in Section 3.7.5. Prior to any vote to terminate participation with respect to a Party, written notice 
of the proposed termination and the reason(s) for such termination shall be delivered to the Party 
whose termination is proposed at least 30 days prior to the regular Board meeting at which such 
matter shall first be discussed as an agenda item. The written notice of proposed termination shall 
specify the particular provisions of this Agreement or other agreement that the Party has allegedly 

Page 11 of 14 
 

Approved [insert date] 



violated. The Party subject to possible termination shall have the opportunity at the next regular 
Board meeting to respond to any reasons and allegations that may be cited as a basis for 
termination prior to a vote regarding termination. A Party that has had its participation in the CCA 
Program terminated may be subject to certain continuing liabilities, as described in Section 6.3. 
 
6.3 Continuing Financial Obligations; Refund. Except as provided by Section 6.1.3, upon a 
withdrawal or involuntary termination of a Party, the Party shall remain responsible for any claims, 
demands, damages, or other financial obligations arising from the Party membership or 
participation in the CCA Program through the date of its withdrawal or involuntary termination, it 
being agreed that the Party shall not be responsible for any financial obligations arising after the 
date of the Party’s withdrawal or involuntary termination. Claims, demands, damages, or other 
financial obligations for which a withdrawing or terminated Party may remain liable include, but 
are not limited to, losses from the resale of power contracted for by the Authority to serve the 
Party’s load. With respect to such financial obligations, upon notice by a Party that it wishes to 
withdraw from the CCA Program, the Authority shall notify the Party of the minimum waiting 
period under which the Party would have no costs for withdrawal if the Party agrees to stay in the 
CCA Program for such period. The waiting period will be set to the minimum duration such that 
there are no costs transferred to remaining ratepayers. If the Party elects to withdraw before the end 
of the minimum waiting period, the charge for exiting shall be set at a dollar amount that would 
offset actual costs to the remaining ratepayers, and may not include punitive charges that exceed 
actual costs. In addition, such Party shall also be responsible for any costs or obligations associated 
with the Party’s participation in any program in accordance with the provisions of any agreements 
relating to such program provided such costs or obligations were incurred prior to the withdrawal 
of the Party. The Authority may withhold funds otherwise owing to the Party or may require the 
Party to deposit sufficient funds with the Authority, as reasonably determined by the Authority and 
approved by a vote of the Board of Directors, to cover the Party’s financial obligations for the costs 
described above. Any amount of the Party’s funds held on deposit with the Authority above that 
which is required to pay any financial obligations shall be returned to the Party. The liability of any 
Party under this section 6.3 is subject and subordinate to the provisions of Section 2.2, and nothing 
in this section 6.3 shall reduce, impair, or eliminate any immunity from liability provided by 
Section 2.2. 
 
6.4 Mutual Termination. This Agreement may be terminated by mutual agreement of all the 
Parties; provided, however, the foregoing shall not be construed as limiting the rights of a Party to 
withdraw its participation in the CCA Program, as described in Section 6.1. 
 
6.5 Disposition of Property upon Termination of Authority. Upon termination of this 
Agreement, any surplus money or assets in possession of the Authority for use under this 
Agreement, after payment of all liabilities, costs, expenses, and charges incurred under this 
Agreement and under any program documents, shall be returned to the then-existing Parties in 
proportion to the contributions made by each. 
 
 

ARTICLE 7: MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 
7.1 Dispute Resolution. The Parties and the Authority shall make reasonable efforts to 
informally settle all disputes arising out of or in connection with this Agreement. Should such 

Page 12 of 14 
 

Approved [insert date] 



informal efforts to settle a dispute, after reasonable efforts, fail, the dispute shall be mediated in 
accordance with policies and procedures established by the Board. 

 
7.2 Liability of Directors, Officers, and Employees. The Directors, officers, and employees of 
the Authority shall use ordinary care and reasonable diligence in the exercise of their powers and in 
the performance of their duties pursuant to this Agreement. No current or former Director, officer, 
or employee will be responsible for any act or omission by another Director, officer, or employee. 
The Authority shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the individual current and former 
Directors, officers, and employees for any acts or omissions in the scope of their employment or 
duties in the manner provided by Government Code Sections 995 et seq. Nothing in this section 
shall be construed to limit the defenses available under the law, to the Parties, the Authority, or its 
Directors, officers, or employees. 
 
7.3 Indemnification of Parties. The Authority shall acquire such insurance coverage as is 
necessary to protect the interests of the Authority, the Parties, and the public. The Authority shall 
defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the Parties and each of their respective Board or Council 
members, officers, agents and employees, from any and all claims, losses, damages, costs, injuries, 
and liabilities of every kind arising directly or indirectly from the conduct, activities, operations, 
acts, and omissions of the Authority under this Agreement. 

 
7.4 Amendment of this Agreement. This Agreement may not be amended except by a written 
amendment approved by a vote of Board members as provided in Section 3.7.5. The Authority 
shall provide written notice to all Parties of amendments to this Agreement, including the effective 
date of such amendments, at least 30 days prior to the date upon which the Board votes on such 
amendments. 
 
7.5 Assignment. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, the rights and 
duties of the Parties may not be assigned or delegated without the advance written consent of all of 
the other Parties, and any attempt to assign or delegate such rights or duties in contravention of this 
Section 7.5 shall be null and void. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and be binding 
upon, the successors and assigns of the Parties. This Section 7.5 does not prohibit a Party from 
entering into an independent agreement with another agency, person, or entity regarding the 
financing of that Party’s contributions to the Authority, or the disposition of proceeds which that 
Party receives under this Agreement, so long as such independent agreement does not affect, or 
purport to affect, the rights and duties of the Authority or the Parties under this Agreement. 
 
7.6 Severability. If one or more clauses, sentences, paragraphs or provisions of this Agreement 
shall be held to be unlawful, invalid or unenforceable, it is hereby agreed by the Parties, that the 
remainder of the Agreement shall not be affected thereby. Such clauses, sentences, paragraphs or 
provision shall be deemed reformed so as to be lawful, valid and enforced to the maximum extent 
possible. 

 
7.7 Further Assurances. Each Party agrees to execute and deliver all further instruments and 
documents, and take any further action that may be reasonably necessary, to effectuate the purposes 
and intent of this Agreement. 

 
7.8 Execution by Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of 

Page 13 of 14 
 

Approved [insert date] 



counterparts, and upon execution by all Parties, each executed counterpart shall have the same 
force and effect as an original instrument and as if all Parties had signed the same instrument. Any 
signature page of this Agreement may be detached from any counterpart of this Agreement without 
impairing the legal effect of any signatures thereon, and may be attached to another counterpart of 
this Agreement identical in form hereto but having attached to it one or more signature pages. 

 
7.9 Parties to be Served Notice. Any notice authorized or required to be given pursuant to this 
Agreement shall be validly given if served in writing either personally, by deposit in the United 
States mail, first class postage prepaid with return receipt requested, or by a recognized courier 
service. Notices given (a) personally or by courier service shall be conclusively deemed received at 
the time of delivery and receipt and (b) by mail shall be conclusively deemed given 48 hours after 
the deposit thereof (excluding Saturdays, Sundays and holidays) if the sender receives the return 
receipt. All notices shall be addressed to the office of the clerk or secretary of the Authority or 
Party, as the case may be, or such other person designated in writing by the Authority or Party. 
Notices given to one Party shall be copied to all other Parties. Notices given to the Authority shall 
be copied to all Parties. 
  

Page 14 of 14 
 

Approved [insert date] 



Exhibit A  
Definitions 
 
 

“Act” means the Joint Exercise of Powers Act of the State of California (Government Code 
Section 6500 et seq.) 

 
“Administrative Services Agreement” means an agreement or agreements entered into after the 

Effective Date by the Authority with an entity that will perform tasks necessary for planning, 
implementing, operating and administering the CCA Program or any other energy programs 
adopted by the Authority. 

 
“Agreement” means this Joint Powers Agreement. 

 
“Annual Energy Use” has the meaning given in Section 3.7.1.  
 
“Authority” means the Peninsula Clean Energy Authority. 
 
“Authority Document(s)” means document(s) duly adopted by the Board by resolution or motion 
implementing the powers, functions, and activities of the Authority, including but not limited to 
the Operating Rules and Regulations, the annual budget, and plans and policies. 

 
“Board” means the Board of Directors of the Authority. 

 
“CCA” or “Community Choice Aggregation” means an electric service option available to cities 
and counties pursuant to Public Utilities Code Section 366.2. 

 
“CCA Program” means the Authority’s program relating to CCA that is principally described in 
Sections 2.3, 2.4, and 4.1. 

 
“Director” means a member of the Board of Directors representing a Party. 

 
“Effective Date” means February 29, 2016 or when the County of San Mateo and at least two 
municipalities execute this Agreement, whichever occurs later, as further described in Section 
2.1. 

 
“Implementation Plan” means the plan generally described in Section 4.1.2 of this Agreement 
that is required under Public Utilities Code Section 366.2 to be filed with the California Public 
Utilities Commission for the purpose of describing a proposed CCA Program. 

 
“Initial Costs” means all costs incurred by the County and/or Authority relating to the 
establishment and initial operation of the Authority, such as the hiring of a Chief Executive 
Officer and any administrative staff, and any required accounting, administrative, technical, or 
legal services in support of the Authority’s initial activities or in support of the negotiation, 
preparation, and approval of one or more Administrative Services Agreements.  

 
 

Approved [insert date] 



Exhibit A (cont.) 
Definitions 

  
 
“Operating Rules and Regulations” means the rules, regulations, policies, bylaws and procedures 
governing the operation of the Authority. 

 
 

“Parties” means, collectively, any municipality within the County of San Mateo which 
executes this Agreement.  
 
“Party” means a signatory to this Agreement. 
 
“Total Annual Energy” has the meaning given in Section 3.7.1. 

 
 

Approved [insert date] 



Exhibit B 
List of Parties 

 
 
Parties:  County of San Mateo 

 
 
 

 
  

 
 

Approved [insert date] 



Exhibits C and D 
Annual Energy Use and Voting Shares 

 
 

ANNUAL ENERGY USE WITHIN PCE 
JURISDICTIONS AND VOTING SHARES 

Twelve Months Ended November [date] 

   
Party Total kWh Voting 

Share 

   
   

   

   

   

SAN MATEO 
COUNTY 

  

   

   
Total  100 

 

 
 

Approved [insert date] 



STAFF REPORT 

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Michael P. Laughlin, City Planner 

VIA:  Sean Rabé, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: February 10, 2016 

SUBJECT: Commercial Conditional Use Permit Requirements 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council introduce the following ordinance: 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 5.03.090 OF THE COLMA MUNICIPAL CODE 
RELATING TO COMMERCIAL ADMINISTRATIVE USE PERMITS PURSUANT TO CEQA 
GUIDELINE 15061(b)(3) 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The existing Commercial “C” zoning requires a Conditional Use Permit (Use Permit) issued by 
the City Council for all new commercial uses. Filing for a Use Permit costs $905.00 and takes 4-
6 weeks to process. For buildings which were previously occupied by a  similar use to the prior 
use, the process is unnecessarily costly and cumbersome.  The proposed ordinance would allow 
for the processing of an Administrative Use Permit for new uses moving into an existing building 
that are similar to the prior use. The processing time would be reduced to two-three weeks with 
a processing fee of $280.00. This process will still allow the Town to screen uses and impose 
any necessary conditions to ensure the public health, safety and welfare.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

No loss of funds will occur as permit fees are designed to merely recover the cost associated 
with staff time.   

BACKGROUND 

The Town of Colma is one of the few communities in California that requires all new commercial 
land uses to obtain a Conditional Use Permit. In most communities, assuming a new commercial 
use is to be located in that City’s respective Commercial Zone, a majority of commercial uses 
are permitted outright (with just a business registration required), with a few that may still 
require a Conditional Use Permit due to aspects of the business that may impact the general 
health, safety and welfare (such as bars, churches, hazardous materials use etc.).  In 2015, this 
process almost cost the Town an ideal tenant for a building at 1535 Mission Road.  The 
proposed tenant, a home staging company, had to move from an existing location and could 

Staff Report re Commercial Administrative Use Permits  Page 1 of 4 

Item #9



not wait for the processing of the Town’s Use Permit.  Fortunately, she was able to extend the 
lease on her previous location just long enough to move into the building the day after the City 
Council meeting approving the Use Permit. The tenant space was already set up for a primarily 
storage use with office with limited parking demands, and other less ideal potential tenants with 
greater parking demands were waiting to lease the building.  

The Town’s process also delayed the escrow of a long vacant building at 1755 Mission Road.  
The building is improved for warehouse use with limited office.  The existing limited parking 
matched the building’s original design as primarily a structure for warehousing.  Many potential 
tenants approached staff about uses for the building, all of which were problematic and would 
have impacted parking on Mission Road.  Staff was supportive when a moving company was 
interested in the building to use the warehouse and office spaces as originally designed. 
However, the moving company almost decided against purchasing the building due to the 
Town’s Use Permit process and the complications it posed with escrow.   

Several years ago, a property owner of a multi-tenant light industrial building at 450 Collins 
Avenue was very concerned about the Town’s process and his ability to quickly fill tenant 
vacancies due to the lengthy and costly Use Permit process.  The City Council approved a 
“Master Use Permit” for the building which allows for tenants whose business operations are in 
keeping with the design of the building and available on-site parking to apply for an 
Administrative Use Permit.  This process has worked very well for the Town and the building 
owner, and the proposed ordinance amendment will allow for the same process for similar 
buildings in Town.  

ANALYSIS 

Use Permits are land use approvals granted under the Town’s police powers, with conditions 
imposed to protect the public health, safety, and welfare of the community.  A Use Permit runs 
with the land, meaning the permit is specific to the property and not the individual applicant.  
Thus, Use Permits can be assumed by a similar business of the same use.  However, if a 
different type of use is proposed, a new Use Permit is required.  The Master Use Permits for 
both the Serra Shopping Center and the 280 Metro Center are exceptions since they allow for 
any commercial use to move into any existing tenant space without a new Use Permit.  For new 
commercial tenants, only a business registration is required.  
 
Current Process:  
 
Once a Use Permit application is received, it is reviewed by other Town departments and the 
Colma Fire Protection District and conditions of approval and a staff report are prepared.  
Noticing to property owners within 300 feet of the property occurs at least 10 days prior to the 
hearing.  Due to the internal review process by the City Attorney, City Manager and the City 
Council packet deadlines, the process can take 4-6 weeks, depending on when an applicant files 
during the packet cycle.   
 
Proposed Process: 
 
Processing of an Administrative Use Permit is a streamlined version of the City Council Use 
Permit process.  The application is reviewed internally and a staff report and conditions are 
prepared.  Public noticing is still provided to property owners within 300 feet of the project site 

Staff Report re Commercial Administrative Use Permits   Page 2 of 4 



and is posted on the Town bulletin boards.  Since Administrative Use Permits are not subject to 
packet deadlines, processing can be expedited.  The hearing is held by the Zoning Administrator 
(City Planner) on the soonest weekday possible after internal review and noticing requirements 
are met. The Planning Department review considers the use, parking and any other potential 
impacts with the business.  If there is concern about aspects of the business, the Zoning 
Administrator will refer the application to the City Council for hearing pursuant to CMC 5.03.520 
(h).  
 
The process will only apply in instances where the proposed use of the building is in keeping 
with the Building Code occupancy classification of the building and where few, if any, 
substantive modifications to the building are required for the new use.  In the case of the two 
buildings on Mission Road, both were designed for general, non-hazardous storage with 
incidental office and the new uses could move in without securing a building permit.  If, for 
example, one of the buildings was proposed to store hazardous materials, modifications to the 
building would be required to meet the appropriate occupancy classification and review by the 
County Environmental Health Department.  This type of request would still require review 
through the City Council Use Permit process.  
 
If an office tenant proposes to convert an existing commercial building with warehouse and 
office to all office, which has a higher parking requirement, this would change the occupancy 
classification of the warehouse to office. This would also trigger a full Conditional Use Permit by 
the City Council.  The same would apply if a warehouse space is proposed to be used as a 
dance studio, fitness center or church.  In this example, the warehouse area is proposed to 
converted to an assembly use, which will require substantive changes to the building (including 
restroom, exiting and ADA access upgrades). This change in use also requires additional 
parking which may be insufficient for the site.  This change would also continue to require a 
City Council Use Permit.  A City Council Use Permit is also required for all ground up 
construction or when other entitlement requests are required to be reviewed by the City 
Council. 
 
The Administrative Use Permit will likely only apply to a few multi-tenant retail and light 
industrial buildings in Town.  However, for these landlords and prospective tenants, the change 
will save time and costs while still allowing an appropriate level of review by the Town to assure 
maintenance of the health, safety and welfare of the community.  
 
Council Adopted Values 
 
The recommendation is consistent with the Council value of responsibility because it 
considers the impact of Town processes on businesses. 

Sustainability Impact 
 
None.  
 
 
  

Staff Report re Commercial Administrative Use Permits   Page 3 of 4 



Alternatives 
 
The City Council could choose not to introduce the ordinance which would keep the existing Use 
Permit provisions in the CMC. This is not recommended since streamlining existing processes is 
beneficial to businesses and consistent with the Town’s desire to support economic 
development. 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
Staff recommends the City Council introduce and adopt the ordinance. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. Ordinance 

Staff Report re Commercial Administrative Use Permits   Page 4 of 4 



ORDINANCE NO. ___ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 5.03.090 OF THE COLMA MUNICIPAL 
CODE RELATING TO COMMERCIAL ADMINISTRATIVE USE PERMITS 

PURSUANT TO CEQA GUIDELINE 15061(b)(3) 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does ordain as follows: 

ARTICLE 1. CMC SECTION 5.03.090 AMENDED.1 

Section 5.03.090 shall be and hereby is amended as follows: 

(b) Uses Allowed in the “C” Zone upon issuance of an administrative use permit. 

(1) The uses allowed in the “C” Zone with the issuance of a use permit pursuant to 
Section 5.03.090(c) may be permitted upon issuance of an administrative use permit, instead of 
a use permit, if the proposed use meets all of the following criteria:  

A. Will occupy an existing commercial building or occupy a tenant space 
within an existing commercial building; and 

B. Is within the same Building Code occupancy classification of the existing 
building; and 

C. Doesn’t require any building modifications; and 

D. Will not exceed the available on-site parking 

(2) This section shall not apply to the following uses, all of which still require a use 
permit pursuant to Section 5.03.090 (c): 

A. Uses which convert existing warehouse or light industrial space to office; 

B. Uses which convert existing warehouse or light industrial space to auto 
repair; 

C. Uses which convert retail space to a restaurant or bar; and 

D. Uses which convert warehouse or light industrial space to a use where 
hazardous materials use requires review by the San Mateo County 
Environmental Health Department based on responses to questions on 
their Hazardous Materials Notification Form. 

1 Substantive changes have been identified as follows: New text has been underlined; revised text has 
been underlined, without showing the prior wording; and deleted text is shown with a strike-through line. 
Non-substantive changes, such as grammar and formatting are not identified. All markings will be 
removed from the final version that is adopted by the City Council. 

Ord. No. ___ Commercial Administrative Use Permits Page 1 of 3 

Attachment A



(b) (c) The following uses may be permitted in the "C" Zone upon issuance of a use permit in 
accordance with the procedures set forth: 
 

(1) A commercial establishment; 
 
(2)  A single family dwelling or a multiple dwelling up to six units, provided the 

proposed residential density does not exceed that specified in the Colma General 
Plan; 

 
(3)  Residential Planned Development on land identified in the Colma General Plan as 

suitable for residential uses, provided the proposed residential density does not 
exceed that specified in the Colma General Plan; 

 
(4)  Supportive housing; 
 
(5)  Transitional housing; 
 
(6) A light industrial establishment; 
 
(7)  Communications structures; 
 
(8)  Commercial center; 
 
(9)  Retail Merchandising Unit; and 
 
(10)  Such other uses which are found by the City Council to be of a similar nature to 
the above described uses. 

 
[History: formerly §5.314; ORD. 234, 3/14/79; ORD. 309, 2/13/85; ORD. 425, 7/10/91; 
Ord. 506, 3/12/97; ORD. 638, 12/14/05; ORD. 720, 5/8/13; ORD. 728, 10/9/13; ORD. 
737, 1/14/15; ORD. ____] 

 
ARTICLE 2. SEVERABILITY.  

Each of the provisions of this Ordinance is severable from all other provisions. If any article, 
section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is for any reason 
held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity 
of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 

 
ARTICLE 3. NOT A CEQA PROJECT. 

The City Council finds that adoption of this Ordinance is not a "project," as defined in the 
California Environmental Quality Act because it does not have a potential for resulting in either 
a direct physical change in the environment or a reasonably foreseeable indirect physical 
change in the environment and concerns general policy and procedure making. 

Ord. No. ___ Commercial Administrative Use Permits Page 2 of 3 



 
ARTICLE 4. EFFECTIVE DATE.  

This ordinance, or a summary thereof prepared by the City Attorney, shall be posted on the 
three (3) official bulletin boards of the Town of Colma within 15 days of its passage and is to 
take force and effect thirty (30) days after its passage. 

Certificate of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Ordinance No. ___ was duly introduced at a regular meeting of the 
City Council of the Town of Colma held on February 10, 2016 and duly adopted at a regular 
meeting of said City Council held on  ___, 2016 by the following vote: 
 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 

  Aye No Abstain Not Participating   

Diana Colvin, Mayor      

Helen Fisicaro       

Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez       

Joseph Silva      

Joanne F. del Rosario      

Voting Tally      

 
Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Diana Colvin, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 
 
 

Ord. No. ___ Commercial Administrative Use Permits Page 3 of 3 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  


	Agenda 02.10.16 Regular Meeting
	1. Closed Session
	2. Minutes - Regular Meeting 01.13.16
	3. Report of Checks Paid - January
	4. Ordinance Second Reading - Construction Noise
	5. 2015 General Plan and Housing Element Annual Report
	A. Housing Element Report
	B. General Plan Report

	6. First Amendment to Employment Contract for Chief of Police
	A. Resolution
	B. First Amendment
	C. Employment Contract

	7. Bingo Ordinance
	A. Ordinance

	8. Peninsula Clean Energy
	A. Ordinance
	B. Resolution
	C. Joint Powers Agreement

	9. Commercial Conditional Use Permit Requirements
	A. Ordinance 




